omprehensive
Annual
Financial Repor
City of Amarj,Jﬁ,/,t/)/(




CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS

Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report

Fiscal Year Ended
September 30, 2008

Prepared by:
Finance Division

Dean Frigo
Director of Finance



BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS
Advisory Commission for the Disabled
Airport Board

Animal Control Board

CITY OF AMARILLO
Organization Chart

Amarillo Economic Development Corporation

Amarillo Hospital District

BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS
Convention and Visitors Council

Greenways Improvement Board

Health Facilities Corporation

Library Board

Mental Health and Mental Retardation Board

Amarillo Housing Corporation AMARILLO Parks and Recreation Commission
Amarillo Housing Finance Corporation Planning and Zoning Commission
Amarillo Industrial Development Corporation CIT'ZENS Potter-Randal Appraisal District
Board of Appraisal Review Potter-Randall County Emergency Communications
Board of Review for Landmarks and Historical Districts | District Board of Directors
Bi-City-County Public Health Board MAYOR & Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone #1 Board (TIRZ)
Board of Hospital Managers Texas Panhandle Mental Health Authority
Canadian River Municipal Water Authority CITY COMMISSION Traffic Commission
Civil Service Commission Tyler Street Resource Center Oversight Committee
Community Development Advisory Committee Zoning Board of Adjustment
Construction Advisory and Appeals Board
MUNICIPAL
COURT JUDGES
ADVISORY BOARDS
& COMMISSIONS PUBLIC HEALTH
AUTHORITY
CITY
MANAGER
' EMERGENCY
ADMINISTRATION
ASSISTANT
CITY MANAGER
— FINANCE POLICE —
MUNICIPAL - INFORMATION CIVILIAN - . J
COURT ACCOUNTING ' [—  TECHNOLOGY 'PERSONNEL
|| OFFICE | [ CENTRAL ——
PURCHASING SERVICES STORES COMMUNITY SERVICES [—
UTILITES || VITAL BUILDING ——
OFFICE STATISTICS SAFETY - PLANNING -
—  PUBLIC WORKS LGLUE N o AP
MUNICIPAL ENVIRONMENTAL | | COMMUNITY | |
ENGINEERING [ STREET |- "GARAGE HEALTH DEVELOPMENT
SOLIDWASTE | _} SOLID WASTE WOMEN, INFANTS |__ ANIMAL |
COLLECTION DISPOSAL & CHILDREN CONTROL
PUBLIC HEALTH [~
— UTILITIES
WATER WATER || SURFACE WATER \ [
PRODUCTION TRANSMISSION TREATMENT PUBLIC & STAFF SERVICES )
WATER || WASTEWATER WASTEWATER CITY -  LIBRARY [
DISTRIBUTION COLLECTION TREATMENT SECRETARY
CIVIC
—COMMUNICATIONS|—
— PARKS & RECREATION CENTER
FACILITIES - LEGAL |
PARKS L1 RECREATION MUg(I)CLIFAL ADMINSTRATION
AIRPORT —
— FIRE
| | CIVILIAN HUMAN RESOURCES [—
PERSONNEL

|

RISK
MANAGEMENT




CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
PRINCIPAL OFFICIALS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

GOVERNING BODY:

Debra McCartt
Madison Scott
Brian J. Eades
Ronald Boyd
Jim Simms

OTHER PRINCIPAL OFFICIALS:

Alan M. Taylor
Jarrett Atkinson
Marcus Norris
Donna DeRight
Dean Frigo
Michael Rice
Emmett Autrey
Robert Taylor
Vicki Covey
Larry Offerdahl
Steve D. Ross
Jim D. Parrish
Curtis Bainum

Mayor

Commissioner No. 1
Commissioner No. 2
Commissioner No. 3
Commissioner No. 4

City Manager

Assistant City Manager

City Attorney

City Secretary

Director of Finance

Director of Public Works
Director of Utilities

Police Chief

Director of Community Services
Director of Parks and Recreation
Fire Chief

Director of Human Resources
City Auditor



Certificate of
Achievement
for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

City of Amarillo
Texas

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
September 30, 2007 .

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement
systermns whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting
and financial reporting.

President

Y il

Executive Director




TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
INTRODUCTORY SECTION
Organizational Chart
List of Elected and Appointed Officials
GFOA Certificate of Achievement
Letter of TranSmMIttal ........cooovuieiiiciecetcierere sttt e ve bbb e b et eess b eseemtenen i
FINANCIAL SECTION
Independent Auditor's REPOIT.......couiiiiiieierieriee ittt esbe vt e e e eenens 1
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Required Supplementary Information)...........ccecveueereenee. 5
Basic Financial Statements
Government-Wide Financial Statements:
Statement Of INEt ASSELS........ecurriereereererteetetriereiese s tsserreesteestesessesseessssaesssssssassssensssesnsens 21
Statement OF ACHIVILIES .....ccuertereerieerereerteerrrrrrrre et ees e re et st se e et e e esaesaeeneenseseeseseeseens 22
Fund Financial Statements:
Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds...........cocovveinieeiiniinecec e 24
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
to the Statement Of NEt ASSELS ...c..ccueriiveeieieineri et e e sas s s e sassnens 25
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds...........cccocevveoeeceiiiiericececeececeee e . 26
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances of the Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities.................... 27
Statement of Net Assets — Proprietary Funds ........occoveeveirieneeenesiececcese e 28
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets —
Proprietary FUNAS .....c.c.coiiiriiiiiecrrerte sttt et b bbbt ne 30
Statement of Cash Flows — Proprietary Funds..........cccccueeeeeveiieieeeicecececeeeeeeeeee e 32
Statement of Fiduciary Assets — Fiduciary Funds ..........cccoceveevevieveeieceiececeeceeeeceee e 34
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Assets — Fiduciary Funds ......c.ccccocvvvevinenevennicnnccennns 35
Statement of Net Assets — Component UNItS.........cocererverrrererienerisesieiesreseeserensesasessssssens 36
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets — Component Units ........... 37
Notes to Basic Financial Statements ..........cccceceerererienieceieeecieeeeieeeee et ee e ne s s 39
Required Supplementary Information
Budgetary Comparison Schedule — General Fund ............ccoeeveieiiieiiicecceeceeeeceee e 92
Schedule of Funding Progress — Texas Municipal Retirement System ........ccccocveveeeererereceennnn. 94
Schedule of Funding Progress — Firemen's Relief and Retirement Fund............ccooeevveveeivveenenns 95
Schedule of Funding Progress — Other Postemployment Benefits............ccccerveverrrmeeecrruesennnnn 96
Combining Statements, Schedules and Other Information
Combining Balance Sheet of Nonmajor Governmental Funds.....c..c.ccovcveiiimiiccninncncsnncineenns 98
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances — Nonmajor Governmental Funds..........c.ccoceeeeeiiiiiiiiiececeeceeeeceveeie 100
Combining Balance Sheet — Other Grant FUNdS ..........coevevvivvivieirecic e 102

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances — Other Grant FUnds.......c..ccooociiiciicnninrerceeceeseste e s 103



TABLE OF CONTENTS, CONTINUED

Page
Combining Statements, Schedules and Other Information, Continued
Combining Balance Sheet — Public Improvement Districts..........ccocoevceveeerececerceeeeeee e, 104
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances — Public Improvement Districts ........ccccoeerieiiieiercieieieeee e 105
Combining Balance Sheet — Seizure FUnds .......cccoceeerierrrei et 106
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances — Seizure FUnds.........coccevuverieeneennininincne et eees et 107
Combining Balance Sheet — Miscellaneous Special Revenue Funds.........cccoeveveiieneceneeennnne 108
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances — Miscellaneous Special Revenue Funds .......c.cccoovvienierieneecnircnicnicnieneeniens 109
Combining Balance Sheet — Capital Projects Funds..........cccoceevrenerenrnerenrseeeceereeeereee e 110
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances — Capital Projects FUNdSs........c.ceceeeereeeninieerinrieereecececerene e 112
Combining Statement of Net Assets — Internal Service Funds .........ccocveevevercevrieienneecceeeeees 116
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in '

Net Assets — Internal Service FUnds........ccoceecvmrieereieieeeeeee e 117
Combining Statement of Cash Flows — Internal Service Funds..........ccccoeveiiemveivevevvnnecnveennnen, 118
Balance Sheet — General FUnd ... 123
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances — General FUnd..........coccoooieiiininencce ettt ee e 124
Comparative Schedule of Revenues — General Fund..........cccoevirieiiiecieieieeieecee e 125
Schedule of Expenditures by Department (GAAP Basis) — General Fund...........coccoovrneennnnne. 128
Schedule of Expenditures by Department - Budgetary Basis — General Fund.........cccccocevevenenene 132
Statement of Net Assets — Water and Sewer System Fund.........cccocviiieninceecneccecceeceeeee 138
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in

Net Assets — Water and Sewer System FUnd........coocoveveiiiieciicin ettt ene s 139
Statement of Cash Flows - Water and Sewer System Fund ............ccoocoeieiieiiiiieieciececieereenen, 140
Schedule of Operating Revenues — Water and Sewer System Fund .......c.c.cooeeveeennceecriceenenn, 141
Schedule of Operating Expenses by Department — Water and Sewer System Fund................... 142
Statement of Net Assets — Arport FUN .......co.ooiieiinirinnineretee e e 146
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in _

Net Assets — AIrPort FUNA ......o..oiiiiiiececeee ettt s e eee e st e nees 147
Statement of Cash Flows — Airport FUN.........coeieiioiieineeieeeeese et reeens 148
Schedule of Operating Revenues — Airport FUund ........ccococeeeveeiriiieeieeee et 149
Combining Schedule of Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Balances —

Housing and Urban Development Grants............cooevereererrerircenrereeesrseesesnesesesesssessessessens 152
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in

Fund Balances — Housing and Urban Development Grants ............cccceeeeveeeeernserncriesernenees 154

Combining Schedule of Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Balances —
Public Health GIrants............ccveiieiiueivieeneiisieieeeeseeeseestresresesessesssesssssssseesssesssssssessnesnsssnen 156
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in , : ‘
Fund Balances — Public Health Grants ..........ccccceeveeveereemnieieiiceiceeeeeeesseeeeeeeesseemesneees 157



TABLE OF CONTENTS, CONTINUED

Page
Combining Statements, Schedules and Other Information, Continued
Combining Schedule of Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Balances —
JUSHICE GIANTS.....cuviutiiieeieteeesirtre et et este st e e e s e saesbe e s e e besreeaeesee e enseseeneebensetessesassens 158
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances — JUSLICE GIants ...........ceccererreervrerereeienrseeee e seessseee et ssee e ssenesseseereeeees 159
Combining Schedule of Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Balances —
MiSCEIlaNEOUS GIANLS. ......ceveieeeeeeeeeeireereerei et te e et e ee e s e e s e sseebeese et easessessssersesseseesennenes 160
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances — Miscellaneous Grants...........ccceceveviresiesieniesiesesceee e see s esee e 162
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Funds.......c.c.oooeieviininnicriireeeree et 164
Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Funds............cceceovceieveeeciesieecnceeecevee 165
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Schedule of Investments — BY FUNAS......ccccoocrirereineececee ettt er e e e s snnen 168
Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable by ROl YEar......cociiiiieereciceeeceeceeteeeeee et s 170
Schedule of Changes in Taxes Available........c..ccoivrrieiiiccninieree e e 171
Combined Schedule of Outstanding Debt ISSUANCES ......cccceeeuerierieieececreere et e ne s 172
Combined Schedule of Debt Service Requirements to Maturity .........ccoceceeerreseecesrevesisesssresseneneen. 174
Waterworks and Sewer System — Revenue Bond Principal Repayment Schedule............................ 176
Waterworks and Sewer System — Historical Financial Data — Operating Statements....................... 177
Waterworks and Sewer System — Historical Financial Data — City's Equity in System.................... 178
Waterworks and Sewer System — Historical Financial Data — Water and Sewer
FUnd OpPerations.........occoeuieieuieierieerterieeceeeieresesesseess et ste e saeses s ssessessessessesensesseseanssesesesesesssssssens 179
Waterworks and Sewer System — Historical Financial Data — Water and Sewer
FUNA NEE ASSEES ....eoriiieietrteeetesesteesesestestssts e e et e st e e s e as s e ese e e e seseesessesesessesseseasesnensanes 180
Schedule of Expenditures by Department — Budgetary Basis — Public Health Fund ........................ 182
Schedule of Expenditures by Department - Budgetary Basis — LEOSE Training Fund................... 183
Schedule of Expenditures by Department — Budgetary Basis — Local Seized Property Fund........... 184
Schedule of Expenditures by Department — Budgetary Basis —~ Compensated
ADSENCES FUNM ...ttt ettt besae b e be s ebeebesbessensensenee 185
Schedule of Expenditures by Department - Budgetary Basis —
Court Technology and Court Security FUunds.........ccoceeevvereeieieeiieiicecrccetee et 186
Schedule of Expenditures by Department - Budgetary Basis —
Public IMmprovement DISIIICES. .....cccuiererirrrerreenteiitsretetesisesteee e e sasssessasseesassensasseesesensesessesensas 187
Schedule of Expenditures by Department - Budgetary Basis —
Bonded Debt Service FUNd ..ottt stre sttt st eee e se e eae e s enan 188
STATISTICAL DATA (UNAUDITED)
Net Assets by Component, Last Seven Fiscal Years .......cooecueeeeeeeiiiieieceeececeetrcr e eresene 190
Changes in Net Assets, Last Seven Fiscal Years.......cooueeveeiiieieeeiieeieeicieeece et eresseseeessessessessens 191
Fund Balances, Governmental Funds, Last Ten Fiscal Years .......cccoevevvveriiverivieeceineeeeseiesenseeseesee 194
Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds, Last Ten Fiscal Years .........ccccouveevereecrrerenennnee. 195
Tax Revenues by Source, Governmental Funds, Last Ten Fiscal Years .......cccoccovviveeiveeveoneveennne 196

Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property, Last Ten Fiscal Years............... 197



TABLE OF CONTENTS, CONTINUED

Page
STATISTICAL DATA (UNAUDITED), Continued
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates, Last Ten Fiscal Years........ccoceeeeieeevveceeiencenesieennenens 198
Principal Property Taxpayers, Current Year and Nine Years A0 ........ccvvevereerererreeerereeserenrsereesnnnns 199
Property Tax Levies and Collections, Last Ten Fiscal Years........ccocvvveevecieimsrenveeeveviereeeeeecee e 200
Taxable Sales by Category, Last Ten Calendar Years........cccoccecieeviecmrieciiecerceereeeeeeeeeeeecrcseeseenea 201
Direct and Overlapping Sales Tax Rates, Last Ten Fiscal Years ........ccccevereeerereeereserreeiernceeeeenreens 202
Principal Sales Tax Remitters, Current Year and Nine Years A0 ......cccooevrvrererereeeniecenennnenerennes 203
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt, As of September 30, 2008............cccccennee. 204
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type, Last Ten Fiscal Years ......c.cooceeeeveerceceiecrieceeeeeeeeseee e, 205
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding and Legal Debt Margin, Last Ten Fiscal Years.......... 206
Legal Debt Margin Information, Last Ten Fiscal Years.........ccocuvueeeereriereeenesieieseseeeses e evaniene 207
Pledged-Revenue Coverage, Last Ten FiScal Years.......ooeeivecieeeniesieseeeeeeeee e ereere e v enie 208
Demographic and Economic Statistics, Last Ten Calendar Years.......c..ceeeeeeerreerrneeeneeecsseresiencas 209
Principal Employers, Current Year and Nine Years AZO .....cccceeeerueeereereeniesreseesiesisenssessessesesessseseseas 210
City Government Budgeted Positions by Function/Program, Last Ten Fiscal Years.........ccccceence.. 211
Operating Indicators by Function/Program, Last Ten Fiscal Years........cocveveereeennsirieceseseeiecienens 213
Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program, Last Ten Fiscal Years.......cccccecervveerrecersicreenennnns 214
Waterworks and Sewer System — Historical Information — Historical Summary
Of TOtAl CUSTOIMETS .....cveuieiienietecrertec sttt et s sae e st sbe e et asasass e besaasenesenseneesnanas 215
Waterworks and Sewer System — Historical Information — Average Daily Water °
Consumption and System Information..........ceceeveereevreerrircrceeseeee et e 216
Waterworks and Sewer System — Water Rates..........cecveiroreiriienieiieceseee et eeas 217

Waterworks and Sewer System — SEWer Rates.........cccocuivieiieceieieecreeeeie et cee et eeas 218



CITY OF AMARILLO

DIRECTOR OF FINANCE

March 12, 2609

To the Honorable Mayor and City Commission
City of Amarillo
Amarillo, Texas

Ladies and Gentlemen:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report ("CAFR") of the City of Amarillo, Texas, (the
City) for the year ended September 30, 2008, is submitted herewith in compliance with Article III,
Section 27 of the City Charter.

One of the responsibilities of the City's management is the preparation of the CAFR in order to
demonstrate accountability for resources, as well as to provide information to our citizens, investors, and
other interested persons concerning our operating results and financial condition. Responsibility for both
the accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness of this report, including all disclosures, rests
with management.

The City Manager, through his appointee, the Director of Finance, is responsible for establishing
and maintaining an internal control structure to ensure that the assets of the government are protected
from loss, theft or misuse, as well as to ensure that adequate and reliable accounting data are compiled to
allow for the preparation of accurate financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. This internal control structure is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met, and it is continually modified to
accommodate new technology and other changing conditions. The concept of reasonable assurance
recognizes that (1) the cost of the control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the
valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management. In our opinion, the City
employs sound accounting and control policies that fulfill these responsibilities.

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the City is also responsible for ensuring
that an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and
regulations related to those programs. In our opinion, the City employs an appropriate level of control
and review procedures to assure compliance with all applicable requirements.

We believe that this report is accurately and fairly presented, and that all disclosures necessary to
enable the reader to gain an understanding of the City's financial activities have been included.
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Independent audits are an essential element of financial control and accountability. The City Charter
requires an annual audit to be made of the financial records of the City by a Certified Public Accountant selected
by the City Commission. The City has complied with this requirement and the auditors' opinion has been
included in this report. The auditors performed their examination in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards and stated that in their opinion, the financial statements are presented fairly, in all material
respects, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The City is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the Single
Audit Act of 1984 and U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133. Information related to the City's
single audits, including the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and the auditors' reports on the internal
control structure and compliance with applicable laws and regulations, are included in separate federal and state
"single audit"” reports.

To facilitate the study of the City's financial affairs, the CAFR is divided into three parts:
® An introductory section, which includes this letter of transmittal.

e A financial section, which includes the basic financial statements and accompanying notes,
combining and individual fund statements and related schedules, required supplementary
information regarding budgetary compliance and pension trend data, and other
supplementary information such as details concerning capital assets, investments, ad
valorem taxes, and outstanding debt. The report of the independent auditors is located at
the beginning of the financial section. Also provided in the financial section is certain
historical and detailed information concerning our water and sewer system.

e A statistical section, which includes selected financial and demographic information,
generally presented on a multi-year basis. Information included in the statistical section is
not part of the City's financial statements, although the material is part of the CAFR.

This will be our first annual report under the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Statement Number 43, Financial Reporting for Post-Employment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans and
Statement Number 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Post-Employment Benefits. Both
statements deal with the accounting of post-employment benefits other than pensions. The City of Amarillo's
most significant post-employment benefit other than the pension benefit is that retirees are allowed to continue
their medical and dental plan coverage, including dependant coverage, after retirement. Historically, cities,
including the City of Amarillo, have accounted for other post-employment benefits (OPEB) on a pay-as-you-go
basis. Using the pay-as-you-go method, the benefit is not recognized during the career of the employee when it
was earmed. Moreover, the pay-as-you-go method does not recognize the liability for the future benefit. With
the pay-as-you-go method, the expense is recognized after employment, which can shift the burden for the
expense to a different group of taxpayers or customers. With GASB 45, the cost of the benefit is recognized as
an expense over the working career of the employee and the related obligation for the future benefit is
recognized as a liability.

This is our third annual report under the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) in their
Statement Number 44, Economic Condition Reporting. GASB Statement 44 required some additional
information. There are more schedules and more detailed information in the statistical section of the report.
The purpose of GASB Statement 44 was to improve the understandability and usefulness of statistical section
information by addressing the comparability problems that have developed in practice and by adding
information from the new financial reporting model for state and local governments required by Statement 34.
In order to clarify that the requirements are applicable to all types of state and local governmental entities that
prepare a statistical section, this statement establishes the objectives of the statistical section and the five
categories of information it contains—financial trends information, revenue capacity information, debt capacity
information, demographic and economic information, and operating information.

i



Effective with the 2002 fiscal year, the City implemented Statement No. 34 issued by the GASB. This
statement established a new accounting model for governmental entities, which made significant changes in
such matters as fund definitions, measurement focus and basis of accounting. Readers who are familiar with the
City's financial statements for prior fiscal years will notice a significant difference in presentation resulting from
this new standard.

Following the report of the independent auditors is Management's Discussion and Analysis ("MD&A").
Although the Securities and Exchange Commission has required public companies to present MD&A for many
years, this requirement, promulgated by Statement No. 34, is new to governmental financial reporting. The
objective of the MD&A is to provide an objective and easily readable analysis of the government's financial
activities based on currently known facts, decisions, or conditions. The Statement specifies the topics that must
be included in the MD&A, and we believe that our presentation is in conformity with this new standard.

Profile of the City of Amarillo:

The City of Amarillo is geographically located within the boundaries of both Potter and Randall
Counties in the center of the "Crown" or "Panhandle” of Texas, and now contains an area of 100.24 square
miles. Located on Interstate Highway 40 at the crossroads of a number of other highways and railroad lines, the
City is the trade, banking, transportation, medical services and marketing center of the entire Panhandle, as well
as for portions of New Mexico, Oklahoma, Colorado and Kansas. The estimated 2008 population is 190,042.

In accordance with its current charter, adopted in 1913, the City operates under a commission-manager
form of government. As the legislative body, the City Commission is responsible for enacting all ordinances,
resolutions and regulations governing the City, as well as for appointing the members of the various statutory
and ordinance boards, and appointing the City Manager. As chief administrator, the City Manager is
responsible for enforcement of the laws and ordinances, as well as for supervising all offices and departments
created by the City Commission.

The City provides the full range of municipal services normally associated with a municipality,
including police and fire protection, street paving and maintenance, traffic engineering, enforcement of building
and sanitary codes, a civic center complex, parks, golf courses, swimming pools and other recreational facilities,
and five public libraries. The City provides solid waste collection and disposal services, and operates a transit
system, the operations of which are accounted for as general governmental functions. The City maintains the
water and sewer systems and an international airport, the operations of which are accounted for as enterprise
funds.

Overview of the Financial Reporting Entity:

In accordance with governmental accounting standards, various governmental entities with which we
have relationships were evaluated to determine whether they should be reported in the City's combined financial
statements as a part of its reporting entity. Based on standards established by the GASB, an entity should be
considered to be part of the City's reporting entity if it is concluded that the nature and significance of the
relationship between the City and the entity is such that exclusion would cause the City's financial statements to
be misleading or incomplete.

Based on the accounting standards, the financial affairs of the Amarillo Hospital District, the Amarillo
Economic Development Corporation, the Amarillo-Potter Events Venue District and Tax Increment
Reinvestment Zone #1 (TIRZ #1) are reported as component units in the City's financial statements. The
Amarillo Hospital District is a separate political subdivision of the State of Texas, but is considered part of the
City's financial reporting entity because the City Commission appoints the District's Board of Managers and has
final authority over its budget and tax rate. Similarly, the Amarillo Economic Development Corporation is
organized as a nonprofit corporation under the laws of the State of Texas, but is included in the financial
statements because of the City Commission's authority to select its Board of Directors and approve its budget.
The Amarillo-Potter Events Venue District, approved by the voters on January 17, 1998, is considered part of
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the City's financial reporting entity because the City's mayor appoints four of the seven members of the District's
Board of Directors. Moreover, through a facility lease agreement, the City has financial responsibility with
respect to the Venue District's debt service payment(s) if the related tax revenues were not sufficient to make the
payment(s). TIRZ #1 has a ten-member board. The City of Amarillo appoints three board members, Potter
County appoints three members and Amarillo College, Amarillo Independent School District, Amarillo Hospital
District and the Panhandle Groundwater District each appoint one board member. While TIRZ revenues can be
pledged to support debt, only the City can issue the debt and pledge the TIRZ revenue. Moreover, the City
Commission created the TIRZ and has final approval authority on the budget and all TIRZ projects. However,
only summarized information regarding these entities is presented in our financial statements. Complete
financial statements are available in separately issued reports for each of these entities.

The affairs of the Amarillo Housing Finance Corporation are included in our financial reporting entity
because of the City Commission' s appointment of its Board of Directors. The activities of this corporation are
limited to issuance of housing bonds under provisions of the Texas Housing Finance Corporation Act, and its
bonds are not general obligations of either the corporation or the City. It does not publish separate financial
statements, but the City provides fiduciary services to the entity and, consequently, its funds are accounted for
by the City as part of the agency funds. Since none of the component unit operations are integral to the
operations of the City, their affairs are segregated from the financial presentation of the primary government.
As provided by the new accounting model, the aggregate component unit information is reflected "discretely" in
the city wide financial statements.

Operating and Capital Budgets:

Budgetary controls serve two main purposes. First, the annual appropriated budget approved by the
City Commission satisfies our legal obligation to review and adopt an annual budget. Second, budgetary
controls provide management with an effective means of managing the financial activities of a particular
function or department. Activities of the general fund, debt service funds, and significant grants in existence at
the beginning of the fiscal year, internal service funds, enterprise funds, and other special revenue funds are
included in the annual budget. The General Fund, Debt Service Fund, Court Technology Fund, Court Security
Fund and the Public Improvement Districts budgets are legally adopted and represent appropriation of funds.
The internal service fund budgets and enterprise fund budgets are for management purposes only and do not
represent appropriations. Grants included in the budget are estimates included for presentation purposes only to
give the budget reader a better understanding of the financial scope of the entire organization. Budgets are
adopted for grant funds at the time formal acceptance of the grants is made by the City Commission, such
budgets generally being adopted for the time period covered by each grant.

The City prioritizes the funding of capital projects on the basis of five-year capital improvement plans.
A capital improvement is any expenditure for the purchase, construction, replacement, expansion, or major
renovation of the physical assets of the City when the project is relatively expensive (more than $25,000), long-
term, and permanent. Some common examples are streets, libraries, traffic signal systems, fire stations,
additional trucks, and water and sewer lines. Capital needs of less than $25,000 (minor replacement items) are
provided for in the department's annual budget. The first year of the five-year plan is the City's annual capital
budget, which is approved by the City Commission along with the annual operating budget. Capital
Improvement expenditures are controlled by means of individual project appropriations, and all funds needed to
complete a project are reserved no later than the inception of the project.

As an enhancement of budgetary controls over expenditures, the City also maintains an encumbrance
accounting system, which assures that adequdte funds are set aside as commitments are made in the form of
purchase orders. Open encumbrances for both purchase orders and construction contracts are reported as
reservations of fund balances at year-end.
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Budget and Financial Reporting:

The City was awarded the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for our
2006-07 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). In order to be awarded a Certificate of
Achievement, a governmental unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR. Moreover,
the CAFR must satisfy generally accepted accounting principles, applicable legal requirements, and the
Government Finance Officers Association's (GFOA) program standards.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our current report
continues to conform to program requirements, and we are submitting it to the review process of the Association
to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

In addition, the City also received the GFOA's Distinguished Budget Presentation Award for its annual
budget document. In order to qualify for the Distinguished Budget Presentation Award, the government's
budget document was judged to be proficient in several categories, including as a policy document, a financial
plan, an operations guide, and a communications device. Our latest budget has been submitted for review and
we expect that our budget will earn the GFOA's Distinguished Budget Presentation Award.

Cash Management and Investments:

State statutes govern the City's investment policies as well as the City's own written investment policy and
strategy. In accordance with State law and the City Investment Policy, the City's investment objectives are to
preserve capital, to provide liquidity, and to maximize earnings within the constraints of capital preservation and
liquidity. City funds are deposited in an FDIC-insured bank located within the City. Permissible investments
include the following:

1. Time deposits, certificates of deposit, and other interest bearing accounts, and bank money market
accounts at the City of Amarillo's authorized depository.

2. Obligations of the United States or its agencies and instrumentalities. The investment in agencies and
instrumentalities is limited to 70% plus any unused portion of the Commercial paper limit below.

3. Commercial paper with a stated maturity of 270 days or less from the date of its issuance that is rated
not less than A-1, P-1, or the equivalent by at least two nationally recognized credit rating agencies.
The investment in commercial paper is limited to 15% of the Portfolio; the investment in any one
company cannot exceed 2% of the Portfolio. To the extent that Commercial paper is not fully utilized
in the portfolio, the unused portion can be invested in agencies securities in addition to the 70% limit.

4. Eligible Investments Pools as defined in Section 2256.016 of the Texas Government Code continuously
rated AAA or AAAm by at least one nationally recognized rating agency.

5. No-load money market mutual funds that are continuously rated AAA or AAAm by at least one
nationally recognized rating agency; has a dollar-weighted average stated maturity of 90 days or less;
and seeks to maintain a stable net asset value of $1 per share.

6. Taxable municipal securities rated not less than AA or its equivalent by a nationally recognized rating
agency or rated AAA insured. The total investment in taxable municipal securities would be limited to
10% of the portfolio.

The City will not employ any investment strategy that is inherently risky and will not invest in any
securities that are inherently risky. Prohibited securities include mortgage-backed securities that pay only
interest; mortgage-backed securities that pay only principal; obligations where the interest rate is determined by
an index that adjusts opposite to changes in a market index; obligations related to foreign currency or foreign
market interest rates or indices and obligations with maturities greater than five years.



The City's demand deposits, time deposits, and certificates of deposits are collateralized by securities
held by the Federal Reserve. The City uses third-party safekeeping for its investment securities.

The City began using a securities lending program as a means to increasing investment income.
Securities are lent to select brokerage firms for which collateral is received that exceed the fair value of such
investments during the period of the loan. Collateral may be cash or high quality securities. Securities loans are
initially collateralized at 102 percent of the fair value of the securities lent; the collateral cannot fall below 100
percent during the duration of the loan. Cash collateral received from the borrower is invested by the lending
agent, as an agent for the City, in short-term investments including money market mutual funds. These short-
term investments are included as investments in the statement of net assets for governmental type funds and on
the balance sheet of proprietary funds. The City records a corresponding liability for the return of the cash
collateral held for securities lending in the statement of net assets for governmental type funds and on the
balance sheet of proprietary funds. Since the asset and corresponding liability are equal, the impact on net assets
would be zero.

Long-Term Financial Planning;

As mentioned above, in conjunction with our annual operating budget, we develop a five-year capital
improvements estimate. When feasible, the City uses pay-as-you-go financing for capital. When debt is needed
to finance capital assets, the City strives to schedule bond issues so that level payments are made over no more
than the useful life of the assets. Historically, the excess of revenues over expenditures are earmarked for future
capital needs, and the available resources of the general fund are transferred to capital project funds during the
budgetary process.

2007 Certificates of Obligation:

As mentioned above, the City historically uses available funds from the excess of revenues over
expenditures to provide for its major capital improvement needs. While this method has worked well for the
City, our capital needs were greater than what we could provide on a pay-as-you-go basis. Therefore, the City
issued $25 million in Certificates of Obligation in 2007. These Certificates will be paid from property taxes and
required a 2.6 cent tax increase in 2008-09 budget year. However, since the tax freeze for seniors and disabled
taxpayers was effective in January 2007, our seniors and disabled taxpayers will not see an increase in their
taxes.

Most of the 2007 Certificates of Obligation proceeds will be used for public safety improvements,
specifically Fire improvements. About $12.9 million will be used to build and equip two new stations and to
remodel and equip older stations. Fire station 11 has been awarded and is being constructed. Station 12 is in the
design phase. The central fire station renovations are currently out to bid and fire trucks have been ordered for
the two new stations because of the long lead-time for fire apparatus.

A building has been purchased for police evidence storage and we have hired an architect to begin the
design work on the remodeling of the 6™ floor of our existing Police Department Building. The improvements
to the firing range are out to bid. We estimate spending about $2.3 million for Police Department
improvements.

Street improvements will use about $5.3 million of the proceeds. The Hillside project and the Soncy &
34" reconstruction project are complete. The Gem Lake Road project is out to bid. The extension of Coulter
Street should be finished in the spring. The DeVaughn/Cortez Bridge reconstruction project is in the design
phase. We are obtaining an easement for the reconstruction of south Dallas Street. The other reconstruction
and overlay projects should be finished by next year.

About $3.5 million of the proceeds were for park improvements. Two new neighborhood parks have

been completed and a third one is in the design phase. We also purchased 21 new restrooms and 11 new
playgrounds. We are in the design phase of our Health Department Facility and hope to go out for bid in early
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2009. One million dollars has been allocated to the Health Department facility. The Health Department facility
will require more than $1 million to complete and other funding sources have been acquired.

Our Local Economy:

Amarillo is a regional trade center for a very large five-state region. Historically, major industries of
the area include grains, cattle, beef processing, natural gas, oil, helium and other petroleum by-products, refining
operations, and nuclear weapons processing. Since Amarillo served as the regional trade center for this large
geographic area, retail sales, banking and medical services are significant activities in Amarillo. Moreover,
because of Amarillo's central location in the United States situated on 1-40, I-27 and State Highway 287, traffic,
transportation, travel and tourism are important industries to Amarillo. More recently, attributable to a great
extent to our economic development corporation, our economy has become more diverse.

Natural gas and petroleum are major industries in the City of Amarillo and the Panhandle. There was a
sharp increase in the price of oil and also an increase in natural gas prices compared to last year. According to
the Amarillo Economic Analysis, natural gas prices were at $6.21 per mmbtu last year compared to $7.43 per
mmbtu at September 2008. Oil prices were more dramatic. Last year, oil was at $75.33" per barrel compared
to $100.15" at September 2008. However, oil prices have declined sharply since September 2008. Since we
are both a producer and a consumer of natural gas, part of our economy benefits from higher gas prices while it
is detrimental to another part of our economy. Increases in natural gas prices mean higher royalty payments to
landowners, but it also means higher energy costs for our area farmers that use natural gas for irrigation and
other industries.

Higher oil and gas prices have increased drilling activity in the Panhandle. At September 2007, there
were 65 active drilling rigs in the Panhandle compared to 100% at September 2008. In January 2002, there
were less than 14 drilling rigs in the Panhandle.

Our region, and especially our area towns are heavily dependent on agricultural products, including
yearling cattle, feedlot operations, wheat, and feed grains. According to the Texas Cattle Feeders Association,
our cattle feeding area produces about 5.8 million fed cattle annually, which is about 26% of the nation's beef.
In September 2005, fed cattle per hundredweight was $86(). Cattle prices peaked at about $96 per
hundredweight in January 2006 and dropped to $88% by September 2006. At September 2007, fed cattle were
at $93% per hundredweight. During 2008, cattle prices peaked at about $100 per hundredweight. By
September 2008 prices had dropped to $98.50% per hundredweight. The same conditions that brought the cattle
industry to our area have also contributed to hog production. The Texas Panhandle is also a major hog-
producing region.

Our principal crops cannot be grown in our area without irrigation and natural gas is the main fuel used
for irrigation in the Panhandle. As mentioned above, increasing natural gas prices mean increasing royalty
payments to landowners, but are not beneficial to our area farmers. The major crops grown in the Panhandle are
wheat and corn. Corn prices were up significantly compared to last year. At September 2008 corn prices were
at $5.30 compared to $3.65" last September. Corn has increased dramatically since 2005. At September
2005, corn was at $2.24". By September 2006 corn was at $2.71%. Thus, from 2005 to 2008 corn prices have
more than doubled.

Wheat prices have not done as well as corn. At September 2008, wheat had dropped to $6.43" per
bushel from a high of over $10’ per bushel during March 2008 and $7.82 at September 2007. However,
wheat was at $4.87" per bushel at September 2006 and $3.35% per bushel at September 2005.

Cotton has become a more important crop in our area. Historically, cotton has been grown south of
Amarillo. However, new hybrids can be grown in our area, and cotton prices have been increasing since 2005.
At September 2008, cotton was at 57.16" cents per pound compared to $54.88%") cents per pound last year. At
September 2006, cotton was at $47.2" cents per pound compared to $42.10% cents per pound at September
2005.
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Our Economic Development Corporation:

In order to diversify and grow our local economy in 1989, the citizens approved a % percent sales tax
dedicated to the promotion of economic development and financing of industrial, manufacturing, distribution
and regional wholesaling projects that will result in new jobs in Amarillo. The half-cent sales tax currently
generates more than $14 million annually. To manage these funds, the Amarillo Economic Development
Corporation (AEDC) was created, and became fully operational when the first tax proceeds were received in
June 1990. AEDC's mission is the expansion of basic employment in the Amarillo area through three
mechanisms: (1) attraction of new basic employers; (2) expansion of existing basic employer operations; and
(3) formation and growth of new basic businesses. These tax revenues are used to help companies create and
retain highly skilled jobs at above average wage rates.

AEDC provides direct financial assistance to qualifying "primary"” businesses — companies that sell their
products or services outside the Texas Panhandle region, thus generating revenues from outside our area and
fueling our local economy. The AEDC's targeted industries are Aviation/Aerospace, Business and Financial
Services, Diversified Manufacturing, Transportation and Logistics, and Food Processing and Technology. As
the lead economic development arm of the city, the AEDC has successfully completed projects with client
companies such as Bell Helicopter Textron, American International Group, Blue Cross Blue Shield of Texas,
Nationwide Insurance, Tyson Foods, and Pacific Cheese Co. The businesses assisted by AEDC are expected
contributions to the local economy through job creation, increased payroll, and capital investment

In the Financial Services Industry, AEDC has helped Nationwide Insurance and SITEL locate a call
center in Amarillo and has assisted AIG in moving some of their operations to Amarillo. AEDC manufacturing
projects include: Backyard Adventures, Tech Spray and SciCron Technologies. Transportation clients include
Ben E. Keith, Affiliated Foods, Anderson Merchandisers, and Hastings.

Tyson Foods, which operates a beef processing plant in Amarillo, is one of our larger employers in the
Food Production Industry and is also an AEDC client. AEDC participated in a statewide initiative to bring
Hilmar Cheese to the Panhandle of Texas. AEDC has recently attracted Pacific Cheese to Amarillo. Pacific
Cheese will process the cheese produced by Hilmar. AEDC has a large portfolio of success projects and makes

the City of Amarillo very competitive in attracting and retaining companies .

Major Industries and Employers:

The Amarillo Chamber of Commerce has about 80 employers with 100 or more employees in Amarillo.
This a very diverse group of employers consisting of governmental entities, manufacturing, defense, industry,
food processing, healthcare, general retail, traffic & transportation, energy companies, public utilities, higher
education, financial services, retirement services, the travel industry and computer services .

The defense industry is important to Amarillo. Two of our major employers in the defense industry are
Bell Helicopter and BWXT Pantex. BWXT Pantex is one of our largest employers. The Pantex Plant, located
17 miles northeast of Amarillo, TX, in Carson County, is charged with maintaining the safety, security and
reliability of the nation's nuclear weapons stockpile. The Pantex Plant is managed and operated by BWXT
Pantex for the U. S. Department of Energy/National Nuclear Security Administration. Pantex's primary mission
is to evaluate, retrofit and repair weapons in support of both life-extension programs and certification of
weapons safety and reliability; to dismantle weapons that are surplus to the strategic stockpile; to develop, test
and fabricate high-explosive components; and to provide interim storage and surveillance of plutonium pits @.
Pantex covers about 25 square miles, has about 643 buildings covering just over 3 million square feet, 48 miles
of paved roads, and 461 miles of fences. There are 18 miles of steam/condensate lines, 28 miles of natural gas
lines, 30 miles of domestic water main piping, 18 miles of electrical distribution lines and four water production
wells Y. There are approximately 3,600 full-time personnel employed at Pantex. Approximately 3,300 work for
BWXT Pantex, and the remaining employees work for the NNSA/DOE Pantex Site Office, the Federal Agent
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Facility Central Command Office of Secure Transportation (OST), the Tri-Lab Project Office, or Sandia's
Weapons Evaluation Test Laboratory ®.

Bell Helicopter's Military Aircraft Assembly Center in Amarillo is building the revolutionary V-22
Osprey and upgrading the Cobra and Huey for 21st Century military missions. In August 2008, Bell Helicopter
announced a major expansion during ground-breaking ceremonies at its Military Aircraft Assembly Center
located at Amarillo's Rick Husband International Airport. In preparation for a ramp-up in production of both the
H-1 belicopter program and the Bell Boeing V-22, an additional 176,000 sq. ft. of floor space will be
constructed. This brings the total size of the Bell facility to 1,095,000 sq. ft. under roof. The expansion,
scheduled for completion in July 2009, is primarily driven by the Bell Boeing V-22 Multi-Year Production
contract signed in March 2008. This contract provides 167 aircraft to the US Marine Corps and Air Force
Special Operations Command over a five-year period, with an annual option for adding up to five additional
aircraft. Bell currently has 740 employees ® in Amarillo.

Other manufacturing operations in Amarillo include Owens Corning Fiberglass, which employs about
550%). Backyard Adventures makes specialty playground equipment and employs 3757,  Amarillo Gear
manufactures gear drives and employs 180°. Arden Corporation manufactures outdoor furniture cushions and
employs 108”. ASARCO operates the copper smelter and employs 379®. International Paper Company
produces containerboard packaging in Amarillo and employs 1309,

Food distribution is also an important industry to Amarillo. Affiliated Foods employs 1,110® workers
in its facility in Amarillo. Ben E. Keith is also a distributor of food service products and employs 250 and
Amarillo Coca-Cola employs 135® workers. Palo Duro Meat Processing employs 130? and Beef Products, Inc.
employs 218® employees. Our largest single employer is also in the food industry. Tyson Foods has 3,6159
employees.

Both the raising of cattle and cattle feed are important to our area. There are several advantages to cattle
feeding operations in our area. The area's central location may mean less transportation costs. An ample
harvest of locally grown feed grains and volume shipments from the Midwest ensure a plentiful supply of feed.
Relatively mild winters and good summer weather have helped the three-state area earn its reputation as "Cattle
Feeding Country." Lenders in the area understand the industry and are willing partners. All major packers have
located large, modern plants in the area, ensuring a market for finished cattle. According to the Texas Cattle
Feeders Association, 30% of the nation's beef is produced in the Panhandle ®. Both Cactus Feeders and Friona
Industries are headquartered in Amarillo. Cactus Feeders is the world's largest cattle feeder . Cactus Feeders
has nine large-scale feed yards across the Texas High Plains and Southwest Kansas . In addition to the feed
yard operations, Cactus operates three cattle ranches in Texas and New Mexico . Founded in 1962, Friona
Industries owns four feed yards in northwestern Texas with a feeding capacity of more than 275,000 head of
cattle®. Cactus Feeders employs 500%’ people and Friona Industries employs 180 people.

Amarillo is a regional medical center for this vast geographic region. The Amarillo Medical Center
includes hospitals, health care facilities, medical research and vocational and professional training in a 450-acre
complex. The multi-purpose medical complex is comprised of 16 institutions representing federal and state
agencies, locally controlled institutions, national healthcare providers and charitable entities. The medical
center complex is home to two of our major employers: Baptist St. Anthony's Health Care System with 2,900®
employees and Northwest Texas Healthcare System with 1,804) employees.

Both Baptist St. Anthony's Health System (BSA) and Northwest Texas Healthcare System (NWTHS)
offer an integrated health care system. BSA offers a full range of medical and surgical services at their 400+
bed acute care patient facility at Baptist Campus located within the Harrington Regional Medical Center. BSA
also operates the Panhandle Surgery Center. The Panhandle Surgery Center is a freestanding, 21 bed, surgical
facility and pain clinic located near the BSA Baptist Campus. NWTHS is a state-of-the-art integrated health
care system providing service to the Amarillo area with a 275-bed general medical hospital, an ambulance
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system, a community health center and an 82-bed behavioral health facility ®. NWTHS is our single largest
taxpayer.

Our VA Medical Center employs about 970%. The VA Medical Center has a 360,000 square foot
facility on 43 acres. The VA Medial Center provides general medical and surgical inpatient care and
primary/specialty care. The VA Medical Center serves veterans throughout the panhandles of Texas and
Oklahoma, eastern New Mexico and southern Kansas. The Veterans Health Care System maintains a 69-bed
acute care inpatient facility and provides a 120-bed skilled nursing home care unit for extended care .

Other large medical employers include the Texas Panhandle MHMR with 432® employees, the Plum
Creek Specialty Hospital with 300® employees, the Amarillo Diagnostic Clinic with 205 employees,
Panhandle Eye Group with 175 employees, the Don & Sybil Harrington Cancer Center with 171® employees,
Triumph Health Care with 180® employees and Amarillo Heart Group with 155® employees’

Mild weather, excellent medical facilities, and low living costs make Amarillo an excellent location for
retirement living. There are several large retirement communities in Amarillo including Baptist Community
Services with 375® employees, Park Central Retirement Community with 300 employees, Bivins Memorial
Nursing Home, the Craig Methodist Retirement Community with 180®) employees, and Ware Living Center
with 141® employees.

Administrative and back-office operations are also included in Amarillo' s major employers. American
General Annuity Insurance (AIG) employs about 978® people. The Hastings retail chain headquarters is
located in Amarillo with 640 employees. SITEL has telemarketing services in Amarillo and employs 337%.
Anderson Merchandisers has 550°) employees. Maxor National Pharmacy Services Corporation is a pharmacy
benefit management company headquartered in Amarillo and has 375% employees. The American Quarter
Horse Association is also headquartered in Amarillo and employs 302®). The Atmos Energy customer support
center in Amarillo employs 311%). Nationwide Insurance also has a customer support center in Amarillo with
400® employees. Blue Cross and Blue Shield recently opened a call center in Amarillo and employs 124,

The Texas Department of Criminal Justice has two prison units in Amarillo and is a major employer.
The two prisons provide 1,348 jobs.

Major retail stores draw customers from a wide region into our City. Amarillo is currently home to four
Wal-Mart super centers. Wal-Mart employs a total of 2,217® people including the Sam's Club. United
Supermarkets is a large employer and employs a total of 864%) in their seven stores in Amarillo. Tootn Totum
has several convenience stores in Amarillo and employs 600 people.

Higher Education is a major employer in the Amarillo area. Our community college, Amarillo College,
offers both vocational training and associate degree programs has 650®) employees. Texas Tech University has
a large presence in our community. The Texas Tech Health Science Center in Amarillo has both a medical
school and pharmacy school in Amarillo and employs 910®), Texas Tech University provides training in our
community for medical doctors earning specialty accreditation in family medicine. Texas A&M Agricultural
Research & Extension Center employs 114®. West Texas A&M University in nearby Canyon, which is a part
of the Texas A&M University System, is now offering classes in Amarillo and employs 7677

Amarillo also serves as a regional banking center. Bank of America, Citibank, Chase and Wells Fargo
have branches in Amarillo along with regional banks and local banks. The banking industry is very important to
Amarillo and banks are some of our larger employers. Amarillo National Bank is on our list of top ten
taxpayers and employs approximately 530®, Happy State Bank employs 110%.

As mentioned earlier, the oil and gas industry is important in the Panhandle and energy companies are
also major employers. Taylor Petroleum Companies, Inc. employs 440%; Valero Energy Corp. employs 126
and Davidson Oil Company with 108®.



The traffic and transportation industry has been important to Amarillo from its beginning in 1887.
Amarillo was founded near a bend in the Fort Worth and Denver (FW&D) Railroad tracks, which were under
construction. The Burlington Northern Santa Fe Railroad is still one of our major employers with 800®
employees. Amarillo is home to Jack B. Kelly trucking, which has truck terminals in Texas along with 16 other
States®. Baldwin Distributing Services, Inc. and Plains Transportation, Inc. are also in the trucking industry;
Baldwin employs 161% and Plains employs 101®. Support for the trucking industry is a larger employer in
Amarillo and includes companies like Amarillo Truck Center that employs 115®. To maintain the state
highways, the Texas Department of Transportation has 380 employees.

Today, Amarillo's airport has the third Jongest commercial runway in the world, and is an alternate
landing site for the space shuttle. There are numerous direct daily flights from Amarillo to major hub airports
with direct flights to foreign countries. You can get to Dallas-Ft. Worth Regional Airport in one hour; Houston
Intercontinental in about an hour and a half; Denver International in an hour; Las Vegas in two hours; and LAX
in four hours. As the largest city between Dallas and Denver, Albuquerque and Oklahoma City, Amarillo
naturally has excellent connections to those cities .

Because of Amarillo's location on Interstate 40, Interstate 27, and State Highway 287; along with
attractions in and nearby Amarillo, hospitality and tourism are significant industries. Approximately eight
million people travel through Amarillo annually and dine in our over 500 restaurants. The Amarillo hotel
industry has more than 50 hotels with over 5,100®) rooms to rent. One of our larger employers is a hotel. The
Ambassador Hotel employs 120%). Wonderland Amusement Park is located in Amarillo and employs 147,

Two of the larger employers are engineering firms. Talon/LPE is a full service environmental
consulting and engineering corporation and employs 125 and Zachry Engineering employs 186%. The
construction industry is also a major employer. J. Lee Milligan, Inc. employs 200®, L. A. Fuller & Sons
Construction Inc. employs 150®, and Denman Building Products, LTD employs 1007

The above narrative on major industries and employers in Amarillo demonstrates the broad diversity of
the Amarillo economy. Amarillo's economy benefits from agriculture, oil and gas production, defense industry,
manufacturing, food processing and distribution, traffic and transportation, general retail, banking, criminal
justice, medical facilities, administrative and back-office operations, hospitality and tourism and higher
education. While Amarillo has several large industries and employers, no one industry or employer dominates
the Amarillo economy.

Current Economic Climate and Trends:

The 2007-08 year was another good year for Amarillo. Our estimated population increased from
187,609 to 190,042. The taxable property values increased from $8.4 billion to $9.1 billion with $265 million
coming from new construction. Amarillo enjoyed another record year for new construction. The 2007-08 year
is our second highest year in terms of new construction, with $280 million in the last five years. Moreover,
2007-08 was the best year in the last five years in residential construction with almost $190 million in residential
construction. The last five years have been very good years for construction. In 2006-07, we had $268 million
in building permits. In 2005-06, we had $283 million in building permits; in 2004-05, the City had $276 million
in new construction; and in 2003-04, the City had $235 million in new construction. The 2002-03 year has been
our record year with $298 million in total building permits. The accompanying table reflects changes in
construction activity in the City during the last five fiscal years.
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Sales tax is our single largest revenue to the City, and it has been steadily increasing. In 1997-98, the
City had $29.4 million in City Sales Tax. In 2007-08, City Sales Tax had grown to $44.1 million, which is 5.4%
more than the $41.8 million we received in 2006-07. Moreover, the above $44.1 million in sales tax is also
greater than our budgeted figure of $42.1 million.

We have also performed better than the national average in terms of unemployment. Nationally, the
unemployment rate for September was 6.5%. At September 2007, our unemployment rate was 3.4% compared
to 3.8% at September 2008. Workers employed at September 2008 were 124, 7009,

Again, the 2007-08 fiscal year was a good year for Amarillo. We are not seeing decreases in real estate
values. We are still experiencing new construction and additions to our tax base. While we only have a couple
of months of sales tax receipts in our new fiscal year, our sales tax receipts are up over last year and are very
close to our budgeted estimate for those months. Our 2007-08 Hotel Occupancy Tax revenue was up only
slightly over 2006-07, but 2006-07 was our previous best year for Hotel Tax. With a national recession as a
backdrop, we do not believe our 2008-09 year will be as good as 2007-08; however, we are not anticipating any
decreases in any major revenues either.

-We also wish to thank the Mayor and members of the City Commission for their responsible manner of
conducting the financial operations of the City.

Yours very truly,

B W SO Mt W Traglote——
Dean Frigo Alan Taylor |

Director of Finance City Manager

City of Amarillo, Texas City of Amarillo, Texas

Sources:
(1) Amarillo Economic Analysis, courtesy of Amarillo National Bank
(2) BWXT
(3) Amarillo Chamber of Commerce
(4) Cactus Feeders
(5) Friona Industries
(6) Amarillo VA Health Care System
(7) Amarillo Economic Development Corporation
(8) Jack B Kelley, Inc
(9) Harrington Regional Medical Center
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CONNOR ® McMILLON® MITCHELL® SHENNUM

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS & CONSULTANTS

Independent Auditor's Report

The Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Amarillo, Texas

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Amarillo, Texas (the City), as of and for the year ended
September 30, 2008, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table
of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City's management. Our
responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the City as of September 30, 2008, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable,
cash flows thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 12, 2009
on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our
audit.

The management's discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information and schedules of funding
progress on pages 5 through 18, pages 92 through 93, and pages 94 through 96, respectively, are not a
required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited
procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of
measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the
information and express no opinion on it.
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Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City's basic financial statements. The combining statements, schedules and other
information, and supplementary information listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The combining
statements, schedules and other information, and supplementary information have been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the City adopted the provisions of GASB Statement
No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions, in 2008.

The introductory section and statistical data listed in the table of contents have not been subjected to the

auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no
opinion on them.

Quwof, /I/fﬁMM, MM‘MW/ 'DLLC

Amarillo, Texas
March 12, 2009
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This section of the City of Amarillo's (City) Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) presents an
overview, through management's discussion and analysis (MD&A), of the City's financial activities and
performance during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008. As the management of the City, we offer
readers of these financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the
City for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008.

Financial Highlights:

The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by
$744,662,146 (net assets). Most of the net assets are invested in the City's infrastructure.
However, unrestricted net assets of $133,714,969 may be used to meet the City's ongoing
obligations to citizens and creditors.

The City's total net assets increased by $26.60 million. Of this amount, $27.29 million is
attributable to governmental activities. There was a $0.69 million decline in business-type
activities, which include the operations of the water and sewer system and airport fund

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported a combined
ending fund balance of $114.66 million, a decrease of $7.7 million from beginning fund balance.
Most of the decrease was in the capital projects funds. The decrease in fund balance for capital
projects funds was $8.3 million. Our capital expenditures of $28.9 million exceeded revenues
and net transfers in of $20.6 million. These excess funds were available for the proceeds of
Certificates of Obligation issued in 2007. The General Fund's fund balance decreased by
$482,168.  Increases in other governmental funds, which include many grants, and special
revenue funds were $1,054,951. ’

General Fund remains in good financial condition. At the end of the current fiscal year,
undesignated fund balance for the general fund was $36.67 million, or 30.56% of total general
fund expenditures. Expenditures and transfers out of the general fund were $134.51 million.
Transfers out are for capital, compensated absences, internal service funds, grant funds, and other
funds which carry out general governmental operations. General sales tax revenues exceeded
budget by $1.93 million. Property taxes and charges for services revenues approximated
budgeted revenues.

The City's general obligation debt is $5.24 million. Scheduled principal retirement on this debt
amounted to $265,000 for fiscal year ending September 30, 2008. The City issued $24.57 million
in new Certificates of Obligation during fiscal year 2007. This debt was issued to provide needed
infrastructure improvements and facilities for the Fire, Police, Public Health, Parks and
Recreation and Street Departments. Many of these projects for improvements are in the
development and design phases at September 30, 2008. The first scheduled principal payment on
this debt is not until fiscal year 2009.

Despite the unusually wet and rainy spring and early summer, which decreased water production
and sales, the Water and Sewer fund recovered from this decreased revenue in the late summer
and early fall months of fiscal year 2008. This is partially due to a revised rate structure. The
City uses a progressive block rate structure, which protects low use domestic customers.
However, large irrigation use customers pay increasingly more per thousand gallons used. Utility
sales and service revenues increased over prior year by $5.29 million.

For fiscal year ending September 30, 2008 the City is required to be in compliance with GASB 45
Accounting for Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB). The City's OPEB is comprised mainly
of health care costs for retirees. In order to determine the City's liability for OPEB cost and to be



in compliance with GASB 45, the City hired a consultant actuary. Based on this study, the City
recorded a current year OPEB liability of $14.68 million and expense of $16.76 million. The
City is currently operating the health fund on a pay-as-you-go basis and the above liability and
expense was reduced by $2.07 million of current year actual cost. The City operates its Health
program as an internal service fund. After recording the required liability for GASB 45 OPEB
cost the fund reported a fund balance deficit of $9.07 million. The net loss for the year was
$14.06 million. In compliance with GASB 34 this net loss is allocated between governmental
activities and proprietary funds and combined in the government-wide financial statements.

e At the end of fiscal year 2008, the City began a $48.3 million airport terminal renovation project
at our Rick Husband International Airport. Demolition of the East concourse was completed in
preparation for new construction. The City plans to finance the project through a combination of
available funds in the Airport Fund, Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) grants and a new
passenger facility charge (PFC). The City plans on about $17.2 million in debt next year for the
project, which will be supported by the new PFC.

e The City purchased land and building located at 801 South Pierce Street. This property is
currently occupied and being leased by Atmos Energy Corporation. The purchase of the building
will allow for relocation of some City operations such as the Fire and Police joint dispatch center
and the Employee Wellness Clinic.

o In conjunction with the above land and building purchase, the City has purchased and is currently
in the process of implementing Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD) software for the Public Safety
dispatch center.

e The Texas Water Development Board has approved the City for a Water Infrastructure Fund
(WIF) allocation. Under this program the State of Texas takes the City's debt at 2 percentage
points less than market. These funds will be used for our Potter County Well Field project. The
project is estimated to cost about $85 million and the State allocation is almost $39 million. The
difference will have to come from another debt issuance, which will probably occur the second
quarter of 2009.

Overview of the Financial Statements:

Effective October 1, 2001, the City adopted the provisions of Statement No. 34 issued by the GASB. The
financial presentation promulgated by that statement is very different from the governmental financial
presentation that was generally accepted before the issuance of Statement No. 34. This discussion is
intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial statements presented in conformity with
the new accounting standard.

The City's basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide financial
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also con-
tains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements: The government-wide financial statements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the finances of the City in a manner similar to a private-sector
business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City's assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may
serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.



The statement of activities presents information showing how the City's net assets changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise
to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are
reported in this statement for some items that will not result in cash flows until future fiscal periods (e.g.,
uncollected taxes).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish governmental activities — functions of the
City that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues — from business-type
activities — functions of the City that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs
through user fees and charges. The governmental activities of the City include public safety, streets and
traffic, culture and recreation, solid waste, transit, urban redevelopment and tourism, as well as general
government and staff services. The business-type activities of the City include a water and sewer system
and an international airport.

In addition to the financial statements of the City, the government-wide financial statements include
information concerning five legally separate entities that are part of the City's financial reporting entity
because of the City's oversight responsibility for their affairs. These entities include the Amarillo
Hospital District, the Amarillo Economic Development Corporation, the Amarillo-Potter Events Venue
District, the Amarillo Housing Financial Corporation and the Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone #1. This
information is presented separately from that of the primary government (the City of Amarillo) because
such component units are not legally or functionally an integral part of the City.

Fund financial statements: A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City like other state and
local governments uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into three categories: government funds,
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Government funds: Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported
as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at
the end of the fiscal year. Accordingly, these statements do not reflect capital assets or long-term debt,
and they report capital outlay as opposed to depreciation and report proceeds and principal reductions of
long-term debt as sources and expenditures which increase or decrease fund balance. Such statements are
useful in evaluating a government's near-term financial requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statement. By doing
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between
governmental funds and governmental activities.

In addition to a general fund, the City maintains 17 special revenue funds, 2 debt service funds, 11 capital
projects funds, and 1 permanent fund. These funds have been categorized as either major or nonmajor
based on the significance of their financial position or operations. For the current fiscal year,
management has determined that the General Fund and the Capital Projects Funds meet the criteria for
major fund classification.



The City adopts annual appropriated budgets for most funds, other than funds controlled by the five-year
capital improvement program or funds controlled by project-length grant budgets.

Proprietary funds: The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are
used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial
statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its water and sewer system and for its
international airport. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate
costs internally among a governmental entity's various functions. The City uses internal service funds to
account for its fleet of vehicles, its management informationi systems, and its general and employee health
self-insured programs. Because over 80% of these services benefit governmental functions as opposed to
business-type functions, their net assets and unallocated (investment) earnings have been included with
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Fiduciary funds: Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside
of the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements
because the resources of those funds are not available to support the City's own programs. Based on
applicable accounting policies, the only fiduciary funds held by the City are agency funds. Agency funds
are used to account for situations where a government's role is purely custodial, such as the receipt,
temporary investment, and remittance of fiduciary resources to individuals, private organizations, or other
governments. As assets of agency funds are offset by corresponding liabilities to other entities, their
financial statements reflect no net assets and, accordingly, no statements of changes in net assets is
applicable.

Notes to the financial statements: The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other information: As the budgetary comparison schedules of the major governmental funds are not a
part of the basic financial statements, this information is presented after the footnotes as required
supplementary information. This report also presents required supplementary information concerning the
City's progress in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its firefighters through the
Firemen's Retirement and Relief Fund, its other employees through the Texas Municipal Retirement
System, and funding of health benefits for other postemployment benefits.

Government-Wide Financial Analysis:

Changes in assets over time may serve as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. Prior to
the effective date of Statement No. 34 issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, capital
assets used in governmental fund activities were accounted for in a "general fixed assets group of
accounts” and were not depreciated. Effective with its adoption of Statement No. 34 as of October 1,
2001, the City computed the accumulated depreciation on all governmental activity capital assets,
including infrastructure. Therefore, changes in assets of both governmental and business-type activities,
including capital assets as well as current assets, provide meaningful information to the reader. The table
below reflects the City's net assets as of September 30, 2008 compared to the prior year:



City of Amarillo, Texas - Net Assets
(in thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Percent
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008
Current and restricted assets $ 169279 $ 185,309 $ 49249 $ 70,572 $ 218528 § 255881 22.96%
Capital assets 322,598 272,876 410,721 400,939 733,319 673,815 77.04%
Total assets 491,877 458,185 459,970 471,511 951,847 929,696 100.00%
Current liabilities 23,276 31,567 10,594 17,150 33,870 48,717 16.35%
Noncurrent liabilities 70,202 55,508 103,114 107,407 173,316 162,915 83.65%
Total liabilities 93,478 87,075 113,708 124,557 207,186 211,632 100.00%
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets
net of related debt 289,264 265,775 300,175 285,682 589,439 551,457 79.16%
Reserved/restricted 556 345 3,365 4,008 3,921 4,353 0.53%
Unrestricted 108,580 104,990 42,722 57,264 151,302 162,254 20.31%
Total net assets $ 398,400 $ 371,110 $ 346,262 $ 346,954 $ 744662 $ 718,064 100.00%

-As can be seen from the above tabulation, 79.16% of the City's net assets are invested in capital assets
(land, buildings, pipelines, streets and runways, etc., net of any related outstanding debt). Management
reviews the use of these assets on an ongoing basis, and determines whether any should be disposed of.
All of these assets are either being used in current City operatlons or, as in the case of underground water
rights, are being held for planned future use.

Approximately 0.53% of the assets represent resources that are subject to external restrictions on how
they may be used. These restrictions primarily represent accounts established in accordance with bond
covenants together with bond proceeds held pending construction expenditures. The balance of net assets
is available to meet the City's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

The City's net assets increased by $26.60 million during the current fiscal year. The following table
reflects the elements of this change:

City of Amarillo, Texas - Changes in Net Assets
(in thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Percent
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008
Revenues
Program Revenues:
Charges for services $ 37007 $ 35,620 $ 55,009 $ 49,203 $§ 92106 § 84,823 41.46%
Operating grants
and contributions 18,384 18,141 - - 18,384 18,141 8.28%
Capital grants
and contributions 6,881 9,520 2,483 3,926 9,364 13,446 4.22%
General revenues:
Property taxes 28,593 26,302 - - 28,593 26,302 12.87%
Other taxes 65,107 59,467 - - 65,107 59,467 29.31%
Investment eamnings etc. 6,301 7,696 2,272 3,707 8,573 11,403 3.86%
Total revenues_ 162,363 156,746 59,764 56,836 222,127 213,582 100.00%
Expenses:
General/Staff services 15,990 13,653 - - 15,990 13,653 7.16%
Public safety 73,158 61,158 - - 73,158 61,158 32.75%
Streets/Traffic 20,565 17,296 - - 20,565 17,296 9.21%
Culture and recreation 22,674 18,815 - - 22,674 18,815 10.15%
Solid waste 12,878 9,107 - ’ - 12,878 9,107 5.77%
Transit 4,920 4,054 - - 4,920 4,054 2.20%
Tourism/ Urban development 12,484 12,488 - - 12,484 12,488 5.59%
Interest on long-term debt 327 340 - - 327 340 0.14%
Water and Sewer - - 51,854 43,531 51,854 43,531 23.22%
Airport - - 8,513 8,017 8,513 8,017 3.81%
Total expenses 162,996 136,911 60,367 51,548 223,363 188,459 100.00%
Change in net assets {633) 19,835 (603) 5,288 (1,236) 25123
Internal transfers 89 190 (89) {190) - -
Other contributed capital 27,834 - - - 27,834 -
Net assets, beginning 371,110 351,085 346,954 341,856 718,064 692,941
Net assets, ending $ 398400 $ 371,110 3 346,262 $ 346,954 $ 744662 $ 718,064




Governmental activities: Governmental activities increased the City's net assets by $27.29 million.
$27.8 million of this increase was due to the contribution of the Amarillo Globe News Center building
located just east of the Civic Center. This facility was constructed mainly from private funds and once
completed was deeded to the City for operation. The City's sales tax collections increased by 5.47% over
last year or $2.28 million. Intergovernmental revenues continue to be an important revenue source for
funding housing, health, and similar low-income assistance, as well as criminal justice activities, and this
revenue source was comparable with prior years. Investment earnings have decreased as market rates of
interest have decreased. Increases in expenses over the prior year are attributable to ordinary inflation
pressures and high energy costs with gasoline and diesel being above $4 per gallon for much of the
summer months. Total expenditures were within budgeted appropriations.

Expenses vs Revenues
Governmental Activities

(Thousands)

Expenses

Activity B Revenues

The accompanying bar chart entitled Expenses vs Revenues — Governmental Activities - reflects the extent
to which each of the major governmental functions of the City is supported by revenues designated for
that purpose. These revenues include charges for services, intergovernmental revenues, and citizen
participations and contributions. Charges for services include fees of the solid waste disposal utility and
transit system, revenues of the auditorium-coliseum complex and park department, and permits, licenses,
and fines. For the current year, expenses of the governmental functions were in the total amount of
$162.99 million. Program revenues consisting of charges for services, operating grants, and capital grants
were in the total amount of $62.36 million, resulting in a net cost of governmental functions in the
amount of $100.63 million to be supported by general revenues of the City which include property taxes
and sales tax revenue. General revenues totaled $100.00 million. General revenues and program
revenues combined were $162.36 million representing total revenues derived from governmental

activities.

The accompanying pie chart entitled Revenues by Source — Governmental Activities — reflects the major
components of both revenues as described above ($162.36 million).
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Revenues by Source
Governmental Activities

Investment

Chargesfor
Services

Operating Grants
11%

Sales Tax
30%

Property Taxes
18%

Business-type activities: Business-type activities decreased the City's net assets by $0.69 million

Water and Sewer System: Water metered sales increased by $3.76 million. Water revenues are
unpredictable because they are affected by the amount and timing of local rainfall. For fiscal year 2008
dry conditions existed throughout the Texas Panhandle area for most of the summer. These conditions
resulted in more sales to customers in those months. This combined with rate increases implemented for
fiscal year 2008 and a new rate tier for high consumption residential customers increased water sales over
the previous year.  Charges to the City by the Water Authority decreased mainly due to decreased
demand on the water system as a whole. Changes in water usage have little effect on sewer revenues,
however this revenue source increased by $1.29 million due to rate changes and growth within the City.

Airport: The Airport has been in the process of expanding facilities, and a significant part of the cost of
this expansion is funded by the Federal Aviation Administration. While the Airport generally attempts to
operate on a break-even basis, its net assets decreased by $0.42 million. The airport continues to apply
for and receive AIP funding from the Federal Aviation Administration as major projects are identified for
improvements. Funds received under this program require a 5% local match of expenditures which comes
from accumulated Airport reserves. During the current fiscal year the Airport began the first phase of a
major Terminal Building Improvement project, and, completed the demolition work on the East
concourse. During the year, work also continued to identify additional grant funds and other financing
resources, including issuance of debt and a passenger facilities charge, to complete an estimated $48.3
million terminal building renovation. Construction phases for this project are expected to begin in mid
fiscal year 2008/2009.  Airport operating revenues decreased slightly from $6.07 million to $6.05
million. Operating revenues are derived from airlines, fees and commissions and other building rentals.
Operating expenses increased by $496,197 mainly due to increased depreciation charges on infrastructure
and improvements.
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Financial Analysis of the City's Funds:

Government funds: The focus of the financial statements of governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is
useful in assessing the City's financing requirement. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as
a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. As
management has long adhered to a policy of financing construction out of unreserved fund balances
available after all current needs have been met, these balances also serve as an indication of the amounts
available for expansion or replacement of infrastructure and other capital improvements.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $114.66 million, a decrease of $7.71 million from the prior year. Of the unreserved balance,
over half has been designated by management for specific purposes, and is being accounted for in
governmental funds established to control the expenditure of the funds for designated purposes. These
funds consist primarily of the Capital Projects Funds and the Compensated Absences Fund, which was
established to currently fund the City's liability under its sick and annual leave policy. The balance is
available to fund current expenditures, or to fund future capital improvement or operating needs.
Substantially all of this undesignated balance is accounted for in the General Fund, which is the primary
operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year, the total fund balance of the General
Fund was $37.19 million, of which $36.67 million was undesignated.

The fund balance of the General Fund decreased by $482,168 during the current year. Actual revenues,
expenditures, and transfers of the General Fund compared favorably with the original budgeted amounts.

The HUD Programs fund accounts for funds administered by the City for the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development, including block grants, housing assistance, and various smaller low income
programs. Most of the grants awarded to the City are expenditure-driven; thus, for most programs,
revenues equal expenditures.

The capital projects funds had unreserved fund balances of $57.44 million at September 30, 2008. These
funds are committed on construction projects in progress, and for projects currently in the planning stages
and in the City's five-year capital plan.

Proprietary funds: The financial statements of the proprietary funds provide information for the two
types of funds — the business-type (enterprise) funds and the internal service funds. The internal service
fund financial statements reflect net assets in the amount of $26.80 million. Of this amount, $23.04
million is invested in capital assets. The purpose of internal service funds is to provide services within a
government on a break-even basis. Funds classified as internal service are: Municipal Garage,
Information Technology, Risk Management and Employee Insurance. The net income or loss from these
internal service funds has been allocated back to the using departments or funds for the city-wide
financial statements. The unrestricted net assets of the internal service funds are generally used to replace
capital assets. Net assets of the internal service funds decreased by $14.78 million due in large part to
recording the liability and related expense in compliance with GASB 45.

The accounting principles applied to these funds are similar to that of the private sector. Consequently,
with the exception of the allocation of internal service fund losses to business-type activities, the net
assets and changes in net assets of the enterprise funds in these financial statements is identical with the
net assets and changes in net assets in the city-wide financial presentation.
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Capital Assets and Debt Administration:

Capital assets: The City's investment in capital assets as of September 30, 2008, was $728.66 million,
net of accumulated depreciation. The following tabulation summarizes the City's capital assets at
September 30, 2008:
City of Amarillo, Texas - Capital Assets
(in thousands - net of depreciation)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Land, water rights $ 7871 $ 8,123 $ 73,148 $ 74,376 $ 81,019 $ 82,499
Infrastructure 136,226 132,971 - - 136,226 132,971
Library resources 4,557 4,543 - - 4,557 4,543
Water and Sewer other - - 266,665 258,317 266,665 258,317
Airport facilities - - 37,834 32,885 37,834 32,885
Buildings and other

improvements 132,736 94,178 - - 132,736 94,178
Machinery and Equipment 25,582 24,989 2,456 2,559 28,038 27,548
Construction in progress 15,626 8,072 25,963 27,548 41,589 35,620

Total capital assets $ 322598 $ 272,876 $ 406,066 $ 395,685 $ 728664 $ 668,561

For this purpose, the vehicles, management information systems, and other assets of the internal service
funds are classified as assets used in government activities. Refer to the notes of the basic financial
statements, Note 6 - Capital Assets, for additional information related to capital assets.

Long-term debt: The City attempts to fund its capital needs on a pay-as-you-go basis to the extent
possible. General Obligation Bonds Series 2001 were issued in the original amount of $6.91 million for
purposes of expansion of library facilities. In 2007 the City issued $24.57 million in new Certificates of
Obligation to fund needed infrastructure additions and improvements. The proceeds from this new debt
will be used in the area of Fire, Police, Parks, and Street improvements. The City is one of 11 member
cities of the Canadian River Municipal Water Authority, and is obligated on its proportionate share of the
Authority's debt. The following table shows the City's total amounts due under bond agreements:

City of Amarillo, Texas - Outstanding Debt
(in thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

General obligation bonds 3 5240 $ 5,505 $ - 8 - $ 5240 $ 5,505

Certificates of obligation 24,575 24,575 - - 24,575 24,575

Special assessment debt 3,519 1,498 - - 3,519 1,498
Water and Sewer

revenue bonds - - 38,245 39,490 38,245 39,490

Water authority debt - : - 66,002 68,847 66,002 68,847

Total outstanding debt $ 33,334 $ 31,578 $ 104,247 $§ 108,337 $ 137,581 $ 139,915

Refer to the notes of the basic financial statements, Note 10 - Long-Term Obligations, for additional
information on long-term debt activity.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The primary purpose of the General Fund is to account for general revenues such as property taxes, sales
taxes, and other taxes and expenditures related to essential city functions and programs. The General
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Fund is comprised of multiple departments that carry out many of the City's essential functions from
street repair and maintenance, traffic, fire and police protection, sanitation collection and disposal, and
other administrative functions just to name a few.

General Fund Revenues: The total General Fund revenues budgeted for fiscal year 2007/2008 was
$128,558,259. Certain reclassifications of interdepartmental reimbursements are made from the approved
budget for financial reporting purposes; however, the General Fund revenue budget was not modified or
amended during the fiscal year. Sales tax revenue accounts for 36% of the General Fund total revenue
excluding transfers. Sales tax revenues, which include general sales tax, mixed beverage tax and hotel
occupancy tax, were budgeted for $46,800,344. Actual sales tax revenues for 2007/2008 were
$48,962,126 exceeding the budget by $2,161,722. The City continues to see growth in sales tax revenues
of approximately 5%. Another major component of General Fund revenues is ad valorem property taxes.
Ad valorem taxes were budgeted at $27,535,414. Actual ad valorem taxes were $28,039,131. Other
General Fund revenues are comprised of charges for services, business taxes, fines and forfeitures,
investment earnings and miscellaneous revenues. In total the actual General Fund revenues exceeded
budgeted revenues by $4,657,315. This overage is mainly accounted for by the steady growth in sales
tax, gross receipts business tax and charges for city services due to the growth and economic conditions of
the City. The attached chart shows the major sources of General Fund revenues:

General Fund Actual Revenues
Fiscal Year 2007/2008 Actual

| .
nvestm e1rl}°Earn|ngs Otherrentals & Misc

1%

Fines and Forfeitures
3%
Chargesforservices
20%

Ad Valorem taxes
21%

Intergovernmental
2%
Interfund Reimb
1%
Licenses & Permits
2%
Business taxes
12%

General Fund Expenditures: The total General Fund operating expenditure budget excluding fund
transfers for fiscal year 2007/2008 was $123,283,935. Total actual expenditures and appropriations
against the operating budget for 2007/2008 were $120,159,907. This resulted in under-spending the
budget by $3,124,028. Police and Fire protection combined, account for 41% of the General Fund
expenditure budget. Operating transfers to capital projects funds and other funds were budgeted for.
$14,772,730. Actual transfers to capital projects funds during the year were $14,490,773. The effect of
these transfers was to lower the General Fund fund balance and provide needed funds in the capital
projects funds. The original 2007/2008 expenditure budget was amended to include $3,700,000 for the
acquisition and remodeling of a downtown building to be used as an emergency communications center
and other municipal functions. Certain adjustments to the original budget are made for financial
statement presentation. These include adjusting departments' budgets at the beginning of each year for
outstanding encumbrances from the previous year. The following chart shows the breakdown by
functional area of the General Fund actual expenditures for 2007/2008:
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General Fund Expenditures
Fiscal Year2007/2008
Percents of Total
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The City's primary source of funding the annual General Fund CIP program is through re-allocation of
excess revenues and unspent monies from the preceding fiscal year. The budget was further amended to
transfer $5,675,232 of General Fund fund balances to the General Construction fund. The goal is to
maintain an adequate level of fund balance or reserves within the General Fund for contingencies and
operations and to allocate any excess funds to the capital improvement program.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget and Rates
There are numerous issues that our organization must be cognizant of in the 2008/2009 Budget. The
following summary includes a brief discussion of these issues and how we are addressing these needs and

challenges.

1) Ongoing Growth Pressures for Qur Organization

Amarillo continues to experience a moderate 1.5% annual rate of growth. This growth has continued
in all four quadrants of the City, with only a minor decrease in new residential construction. This fact
is noteworthy when compared to the present statistical patterns of other Texas cities. To-date our
community, has also appeared to have escaped much of the problematic financial mortgage and home
foreclosure issues plaguing other cities. It is my hope these issues continue to be distant to our local
economy and area. This budget not only continues to fund new infrastructure needs to accommodate
Amarillo's pattern of growth, it also provides essential funding for existing infrastructure maintenance
and repair needs. Although available funding will meet minimum needs, it does not however fully
fund all new infrastructure demands. More importantly, our available funding unfortunately is
requiring that needed infrastructure maintenance and repair needs be delayed or extended for
completion at future dates.

Unlike the previous 2007/2008 fiscal year in which 53 new organizational positions were added due
to growth demands, this 2008/2009 budget is much more reserved in terms of new employee growth.
The budget adds fifteen (15) new firefighter positions, which will serve to staff and operate new Fire
Station 12, to be completed by fall of 2009. This budget also includes the addition of five (5) new
police officers, which will address an increase on calls for service from the public. Finally, this
budget also includes one (1) new Residential Equipment Operator position for the Solid Waste
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2)

3)

4)

Collection Department. Although additional new positions are realistically justified throughout our
City organization due to increasing demands for public services and programs, these potential
positions are being delayed and a renewed emphasis is being made this fiscal year to more adequately
compensate, retain, and recruit City employees.

Continued Enhancement of the City's Pay and Emplovment Classification Plan

This 2008/2009 budget reflects the fourth year in which the City has made it a priority to improve and
enhance our Pay and Employment Classification Plan. Even with the infusion of additional funding
for employee pay and benefit items the past two years, our existing plan is still behind the Texas
municipal government labor market and our own regional market of public and private sector jobs.
Throughout 2006 and 2007, the City experienced measurable success with employee recruitment and
retention. The 2008 period to-date however has eroded some of these past Pay and Employment
Classification Plan improvement milestones that we were achieving. A proven fact is increasing
consumable goods costs are personally impacting some employees and potential applicants for open
City positions. As a result, the number of applicants for various City jobs has decreased. More
alarming, our employee turnover rate is again growing with existing employees leaving for other area
jobs in which employers are showing the ability and flexibility to increase wages concurrently with
the rise in consumer prices.

This 2008/2009 budget therefore allocates additional funding to further enhance our Pay and
Employment Classification Plan and again address the local labor market conditions impacting our
organization. These plan enhancements include continued funding of 4% wage increases for police
officers and firefighters along with an average 4% Pay for Performance wage increase for civilian
employees. For this budget, the Discretionary Retention Pay Program (DRP) for civilian employees
is again continued for the fourth year with additional retention pay to recognize our more experienced
and essential long-term employees. The budget also includes additional job position specific
education and certification incentive pay for all employees; new shift differential pay, bilingual and
sign language pay; one (1) additional holiday; one (1) additional employee personal leave day and full
financial compensation for holiday hours worked

Continued Stabilization of Employee Health Care Costs

Approximately 3% years ago, we implemented new and innovative strategies and programs to lead to
the stabilization of our employee/retiree health care costs. Included in this effort has been the
creation of a highly successful employee wellness program and the opening and operation of our own
City health clinic. During this past 2007/2008 fiscal year, we re-invented and revitalized a
comprehensive organizational employee and workplace safety program, which included the purchase
and issuance of protective safety footwear and specialty clothing for field employees. These three
major organizational efforts, along with other new programs have resulted in the important
stabilization of expenses to our ongoing healthcare costs and a very welcome reduction in employee
on-the-job injuries and associated workers' compensation claims. As with the previous fiscal year,
this 2008/2009 budget does not include a financial supplement to our Health Plan. Whether we will
be able to experience a third consecutive year of health plan stability in today's environment of rising
medical and health care costs is uncertain. With our existing programs now in place, plus additional
and new program and service ideas which we plan to explore and implement, we will continue to
strive for health plan effectiveness and self controlled and managed costs.

Consumable Energy, Motor Fuel, Petroleum Related and Other Purchased Supplies and
Materials

The 2008/2009 budget, like our previous 2007/2008 fiscal year budget, will be required to
accommodate unplanned increases in the cost of goods and commodities essential for our
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organization to perform and provide public services and programs. This budget includes increased
funding for the purchase of essential supplies and materials, with special attention to the expected
expense for motor fuel and other petroleum related products (oils, greases, asphaltic emulsion and
cement, plastic piping and other associated products). Funding for volatile commodities has been
increased in this budget to ensure that essential City operations and programs are not adversely
impacted and that we may continue to maintain the level of public services, which our local citizens
demand and expect. Any moderation or reduction of oil, petroleum and chemical commodity prices
in our local, state or national economy will be beneficial and create an important budgetary cost
savings.

In terms of consumable energy costs, the City's franchise electric utility provider has filed an
electrical rate increase before the Public Utility Commission of Texas (PUCT). The City of Amarillo
has exercised its original jurisdiction authority and denied the rate tariff increases proposed. This rate
case will continue on for an ultimate resolution by the PUCT in the spring of 2009. The City is
proceeding in its efforts to ensure any proposed electrical service rate increases are just and
reasonable. In anticipation of final action on this pending rate case, the 2008/2009 budget includes a
5% increase in electrical consumption costs. The City staff is also working with the City's franchise
natural gas provider to develop and enact a new uniform rate tariff agreement. This new model of
rate regulation has recently been enacted by other Texas cities. This rate tariff agreement, as
designed, is touted as a model to minimize the historical trend of natural gas utility companies filing
numerous rate increase cases before the Texas Railroad Commission. This new rate tariff structure is
designed to create a consistent and stable pattern of regulated natural gas utility costs for
municipalities and consumers. It is anticipated this utility issue will also be resolved in the spring of
2009. Because of this effort, the 2008/2009 budget is prepared with no increase in natural gas
consumption expense.

CONSOLIDATED BUDGET

The 2008/2009 fiscal year budget is $336,602,073 which is a 30.1% or $77,829,145 increase compared to our
2007/2008 budget of $258,772,928. The areas of specific increase in this budget are as follows:

FY 2007 - 2008 FY 2008 - 2009 % Change

General Fund M&O $ 126,552,259 $ 134,572,736 6.3%
Water & Sewer M&O 39,900,230 41,746,373 4.6%
Capital 46,559,781 34,303,641 (26.3)%
Special Revenue M&O 17,584,285 19,097,720 8.6%
Municipal Garage M&O 7,606,900 8,537,944 12.2%
Insurance M&O 19,514,736 21,109,008 8.2%
Debt Service 8,197,162 9,351,985 14.1%
Airport M&O 5,885,397 6,317,144 7.3%
Info Technology M&O 3,330,708 3,571,695 7.2%
Interest Transfer to General Fund 755,000 765,000 1.3%
Less: Interfund Transfers (41,713,530) (43,210,266) 3.6%
Certificates of Obligation 24,600,000 - (100.00)
Water & Sewer Bonds - 83,244,535 -

Airport Bonds - 17,194,558 —

Total Budget $§ 258,772,928 $ 336,602,073 _30.1%
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The City exists to provide essential and necessary services and programs to the public. With this daily
mission, the predominant expense category in our budget is personnel and subsequent employee salary
and benefit costs.

For this 2008/2009 budget, our largest expense category is Capital Improvements Project (CIP) funding,
which consists of $134.7 million or 40.0% of our budget. Our second largest category is personnel costs
which comprises 35.1% or $118.2 million of our total net budget. The third or next highest category of
our municipal expenses is Insurance Maintenance and Operations, which accounts for $21.1 million or
6.3% of our budget.

Request for information:
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Amarillo's finances.
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial

information should be addressed to the Director of Finance, City of Amarillo, P.O. Box 1971, Amarillo,
Texas 79105-1971.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These statements present an overview of the financial position and transactions of the entire reporting
entity. The Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities report information on all of the
nonfiduciary resources and activities of the primary government and its component units. These
statements, as well as the Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities of the component units, are
presented on a basis of accounting promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, which
is similar to the generally accepted accounting principles applicable to commercial enterprises. The
financial statements of the governmental funds, proprietary funds, and the fiduciary funds are presented in
accordance with generally accepted governmental accounting principles to the types of funds presented.
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CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments

Receivables, net
Internal balances
Inventories and prepaid expenses
Other current assets
Total current assets

NONCURRENT ASSETS

Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Restricted investments

Receivables, net

Other noncurrent assets

Land held for future incentives

Capital assets:
Land
Water rights and contracts, net of amortization
Infrastructure, net of depreciation
Buildings and improvements, net of depreciation
Equipment and vehicles, net of depreciation
Library resources, net of depreciation

Total noncurrent assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Securities lending collateral
Current portion of long-term obligations
Estimated liability for self-insured losses,
current portion
Postemployment benefits
Revenue bonds current maturity
Total current liabilities

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Liabilities payable from restricted assets
Noncurrent portion of long-term obligations
Unamortized offering premium net of issuance cost
Estimated liabilities for:
Compensated absences
Self-insured losses, net of current portion
Landfill closure and postclosure care
Postemployment benefits, net of current portion
Total noncurrent liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:
Debt service
Capital outlay
Other purposes
Unrestricted (deficit)

TOTAL NET ASSETS

September 30, 2008
Primary Government
Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
$ 32,485,235 $ 12,642,272 $ 45,127,507 $ 34,712,598
115,806,947 36,340,255 152,147,202 211,371,133
11,501,618 7,258,764 18,760,382 3,835,026
7,013,800 (7,013,800) - -
2,471,791 21,535 2,493,326 11,288,850
- - - 2,265,126
169,279,391 49,249,026 218,528,417 263,472,733
- 4,655,463 4,655,463 18,112,313
- - - 3,962,000
- - - 37,278,095
- - - 2,627,180
- - - 5,385,952
7,870,503 4,003,815 11,874,318 -
- 69,144,044 69,144,044 -
150,905,330 - 150,905,330 -
133,682,808 330,462,341 464,145,149 49,328,352
25,581,946 2,455,660 28,037,606 219,443
4,557,303 - 4,557,303 -
322,597,890 410,721,323 733,319,213 116,913,335

$ 491,877,281

$ 459,970,349

$ 951,847,630

$ 380,386,068

$ 12,795054 $ 632285 $ 19117879 $ 4,736,865
- - - 8,291,369

555,566 2,980,862 3,536,428 2,575,000
6,593,790 - 6,593,790 114,365
3,331,708 - 3,331,708 E

. 1,290,000 1,290,000 .

23,276,118 10,593,687 33,869,805 15,717,599

- - - 319,488

32,778,092 101,619,851 134,397,943 55,922,468
449,086 - 449,086 -
15,494,333 1,494,168 16,988,501 93,223
8,667,692 - 8,667,692 284,919
1,461,585 - 1,461,585 -
11,350,872 - 11,350,872 -
70,201,660 103,114,019 173,315,679 56,620,098

$ 93477,778  § 113,707,706  $ 207,185,484 $ 72,337,697
$ 289264232  $ 300,175,147  § 589,439,379 $ 35,404,607
555,566 3,365,463 3,921,029 784,333
17,586,769 - 17,586,769 -

. - - 21,677,079

90,992,936 42,722,033 133,714,969 250,182,352

$ 398,399,503

$ 346,262,643

$ 744,662,146

$ 308,048,371

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Program Revenues

Operating Grants Capital Grants
Charges for and and
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
General government $ 3,497,938 $ 4,883,145 $ - $ -
Staff services 12,492,520 4,531,899 409,312 935,154
Public safety and health
Police protection 38,520,374 1,587,295 170,204 -
Fire protection 24,930,235 1,605,971 - -
Other 9,707,205 2,673,691 3,863,821 125,371
Streets, traffic and engineering 20,565,144 472,726 47,000 5,702,687
Culture and recreation
Auditorium/Coliseum 4,319,458 1,570,530 298,000 -
Libraries 4,835,833 174,909 540,328 70,387
Parks 7,971,514 837,228 - 21,702
Participant recreation 5,547,189 2,288,243 - 1,000
Solid waste 12,878,205 16,110,978 28,472 -
Transit 4,920,015 197,306 2,310,428 -
Economic development 2,280,629 - 185,860 -
Urban redevelopment/housing 10,204,054 163,512 10,530,615 25,113
Interest on long-term debt 326,813 - - -
Total governmental activities 162,997,126 37,097,433 18,384,040 6,881,414
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
Water and Sewer 51,853,812 48,941,541 - 1,106,357
Airport 8,512,889 6,067,346 - 1,377,146
Total business-type activities 60,366,701 55,008,887 - 2,483,503
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT $ 223,363,827 $ 92,106,320 $ 18,384,040 $ 9,364,917
COMPONENT UNITS
Amarillo Hospital District $ 10,901,435 $ - $ 1,591,851 $ 10,866
Amarillo Economic Development Corporation 9,463,914 2,686,833 - -
Amarillo-Potter Events District 2,540,572 - - -
Amarillo Housing Finance Corporation 2,466 1,776 - -
Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone #1 10,421 - - -
TOTAL COMPONENT UNITS $ 22,918,808 $ 2,688,609 $ 1,591,851 $ 10,866
GENERAL REVENUES

Property taxes, levied for general purposes
Property taxes, levied for debt services

Sales taxes

Gross receipts business taxes
Unrestricted investment earnings
Income (expense) from use and disposition of property

TRANSFERS

OTHER CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL

Total general revenues and transfers
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR
NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

Primary Government

Governmental

Activities

$

1,385,207
(6,616,155)

(36,762,875)
(23,324,264)

(3,044,322)
(14,342,731)

(2,450,928)
(4,050,209)
(7,112,584)
(3,257,946)
3,261,245
(2,412,281)
(2,094,769)
515,186
(326,813)

Business-type

Activities

(100,634,239)

(1,805,914)
(1,068,397)

(100,634,239)

(2,874,311)

(2,874,311)

28,061,014
532,309
48,962,126
16,144,044
6,006,138
294,710
89,376
27,834,149

127,923,866

2,241,158
30,888
(89,376)

27,289,627
371,109,876

2,182,670

398,399,503

(691,641)
346,954,284

346,262,643

Total

Component

Units

1,385,207
(6,616,155)

(36,762,875)
(23,324,264)

(3,044,322)
(14,342,731)

(2,450,928)
(4,050,209)
(7,112,584)
(3,257,946)
3,261,245
(2,412,281)
(2,094,769)
515,186
(326,813)

(100,634,239)

(1,805,914)
(1,068,397)

(2,874,311)

(103,508,550)

(9,298,718)
(6,777,081)
(2,540,572)
(690)
(10,421)

28,061,014
532,309
48,962,126
16,144,044
8,247,296
325,598

27,834,149

(18,627,482)

130,106,536

231,844

14,686,781
2,070,185
12,524,066

29,512,876

26,597,986
718,064,160

$

744,662,146

10,885,394
297,162,977

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
SEPTEMBER 30, 2008
) Capital Other Total
General Projects Governmental Governmental
Fund Funds Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,127,385 § 16,116,780 $ 8,193,174 $ 26,437,339
Investments, at fair values 33,990,456 42,619,412 10,685,476 87,295,344
Receivables, net of allowances for uncollectibles

Property taxes 286,976 - 5,321 292,297
Accounts 1,028,003 - 266,622 1,294,625
Accrued interest 483,543 298,350 91,168 873,061
Other accrued revenue 1,789,388 - 228,977 2,018,365
Due from other funds unrestricted 2,489,918 - 841,509 3,331,427
Due from other governments 3,923,613 224734 1,389,356 5,537,703
Inventory of supplies 1,272,455 - - 1,272,455
Prepaid items 6,742 1,000 542,263 550,005

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Vouchers payable
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Securities lending collateral
Deposits
Due to other funds - unrestricted
Due to other governments
Deferred revenues - property taxes
Deferred revenues - other

Total liabilities

FUND BALANCES
Reserved
Encumbrances
Prepaid items
Uncollected taxes
Grant donor purposes
Sick and annual leave
Unreserved
Debt Service Fund
Capital Projects
Designated for other specific purposes
Special revenue funds
Compensated absences fund
Undesignated

Total fund balances
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

$ 47,398,479

$ 59,260,276

$ 22,243,866

$ 128,902,621

$ 1,510,254  $ 467,837 3 179,819 § 2,157,910
1,656,329 270,135 388,318 2,314,782
4,550,459 - - 4,550,459

545,823 - - 545,823
878,796 1,085,000 1,417,656 3,381,452
746,668 - 126,572 873,240
202,871 - 3,626 206,497
115,398 - 93,906 209,304
10,206,598 1,822,972 2,209,897 14,239,467
427,261 - - 427,261
6,742 - 542,263 549,005
84,105 - 1,695 85,800

- - 538,992 538,992

- - 52,991 52,991

- - 10,167 10,167

- 57,437,304 - 57,437,304

- - 4,037,138 4,037,138

- - 14,850,723 14,850,723
36,673,773 - - 36,673,773
37,191,881 57,437,304 20,033,969 1 14,.663,154
$ 47398479 § 59,260,276 § 22243866 $§ 128,902,621

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

TOTAL FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

The City uses internal service funds to charge the costs of the municipal garage, information services, risk
management and employee health services to other departments of the City on a cost-reimbursement basis.
The assets and liabilities, excluding capital assets, of the internal service funds are included in the
governmental activities in the statement of net assets.

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as
assets in governmental funds. Current year capital outlays are expenditures in the fund financial statements,
but they should be shown as increases in capital assets in the government-wide financial statements. The net
effect of including the balances for capital assets (net of depreciation) in the governmental aciivities is to
increase net assets.

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable and compensated absence liabilities, are not due and payable
in the current period and therefore are not reported as liabilities in the funds. In addition, long-term debt
principal payments are expenditures in the fund financial statements, but they should be shown as reductions
in Jong-term debt in the government-wide financial statements. The net effect of including the long-term
liabilities and the debt principal payments is to decrease net assets. Those liabilities consist of?

Long-term debt $ 33,333,658
Compensated absence 14,850,723
Landfill closure and postclosure 1,461,585

$ 49,645,966

The 2008 depreciation expense increases accumulated depreciation. The net effect of the current year's
depreciation is to decrease net assets.

Various other reclassifications and eliminations are necessary to convert from the modified accrual basis of
accounting to the accrual basis of accounting. These include recognizing deferred revenue as revenue,
eliminating interfund transactions, and recognizing the receivable from the business-type activities for
services provided by the internal service funds. The net effect of these reclassifications and recognitions is to
increase net assets.

NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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114,663,154

3,754,397

339,820,889

(49,645,966)

(17,222,999)

7,030,028

$

398,399,503




STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

REVENUES

Taxes

Ad valorem taxes

Sales taxes

Gross receipts business taxes
License and permits
Interfund revenues
Intergovernmental revenues
Grants-in-aid
Citizen contributions
Construction participation
Other entity participations
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Investment earnings
Other rentals and commissions
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
General government
Staff services
Public safety and health
Police protection
Fire protection
Other
Streets, traffic and engineering
Culture and recreation
Auditorium - Coliseumn
Libraries
Parks
Participant recreation
Solid waste
Transit system
Urban redevelopment and housing
Tourism
Capital outlay
Debt service
Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges
Termination vacation and sick leave pay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficit) of revenues over (under)

expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds
Issuance of long-term debt
Bond premium
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR
FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR

CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008
Other Total
Capital Governmental Governmental
General Projects Funds Funds
$ 28,039,131 $ - b 532,309 5 28,571,440
48,962,126 - - 48,962,126
16,144,044 - - 16,144,044
2,015,135 - - 2,015,135
1,320,395 - - 1,320,395
2,972,670 862,270 14,846,359 18,681,299
7,300 - - 7,300
- 5,790,974 25,582 5,816,556
- - 690,382 690,382
26,585,802 74,333 854,572 27,514,707
4,239,595 - 865,254 5,104,849
2,006,914 2,010,241 660,337 4,677,492
338,058 131,555 - 469,613
584,404 22,074 87,860 694,338
133,215,574 8,891,447 18,562,655 160,669,676
3,077,009 - - 3,077,009
9,458,256 43,034 495,818 9,997,108
32,524,412 - 463,541 32,987,953
22,095,334 - - 22,095,334
4,994,124 - 3,795,593 8,789,717
13,979,037 - - 13,979,037
2,793,432 - - 2,793,432
3,365,228 - 508,503 3,873,731
5,946,379 - 388,370 6,334,749
4,424,589 - - 4,424,589
10,881,683 - - 10,881,683
3,937,106 - - 3,937,106
- - 10,009,916 10,009,916
2,280,629 - - 2,280,629
257,561 28,849,137 2,392,421 31,499,119
- - 344,615 344,615
- - 326,813 326,813
- - 1,753,114 1,753,114
120,014,779 28,892,171 20,478,704 169,385,654
13,200,795 (20,000,724) (1,916,049) (8,715,978)
807,810 14,017,687 1,649,283 16,474,780
(14,490,773) (2,304,532) (742,708) (17,538,013)
- - 2,064,425 2,064,425
(13,682,963) 11,713,155 2,971,000 1,001,192
(482,168) (8,287,569) 1,054,951 (7,714,786)
37,674,049 65,724,873 18,979,018 122,377,940
3 37,191,881 $ 57,437,304 $ 20,033,969 $ 114,663,154

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF THE
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

TOTAL NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - GOYERNMENTAL FUNDS $  (7,714,786)

The City uses an internal service fund to charge the costs of the municipal garage, information services, risk (14,784,674)
management and employee health services to other departments of the City. The net income (loss) of the

internal service fund is included in the governmental activities in the Statement of Activities, except for net

income (loss) allocated to the business-type activities for services provided by the internal service funds to

those activities. The net effect of this consolidation is to increase net assets.

Current year capital outlays and long-term debt principal payments are expenditures in the fund financial 58,050,418
statements, but they should be shown as increases in capital assets and reductions in long-term debt in the

government-wide financial statements. Issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to the

governmental funds; however, it should be shown as an increase in long-term liabilities in the government-

wide financial statements. The net effect of including the 2008 capital outlays, issuance of long-term debt,

and debt principal payments is to decrease net assets.

Capital outlay $ 31,936,079
Contributed capital 27,834,149
Issuance of long-term debt (2,064,425)
Long-term debt principal payments 344,615

$ 58,050,418

Depreciation is not recognized as an expense in the governmental funds since it does not require the use of (12,046,969)
current financial resources. The net effect of the current year's depreciation is to decrease net assets.

Various other reclassifications and eliminations are necessary to convert from the modified accrual basis of 3,785,638
accounting to the accrual basis of accounting. These include recognizing deferred revenue as revenue,

eliminating interfund transactions and the net loss on services provided to the business-type activities by the

internal service funds. The net effect of these reclassifications and recognitions is to increase (decrease) net

assets.

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $ 27,289,627

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.

27



ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments, at fair values
Accounts receivable
Accrued interest receivable
Other accrued revenue
Due from other funds
Due from other governments
Inventory of supplies
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Capital assets

Land

Underground water rights

Accumulated depletion water rights

Water supply contract

Accumulated amortization - water
supply contract

Pipelines and plant

Accumulated depreciation -
pipelines and plant

Runway, buildings and improvements

Accumulated depreciation - runways,
buildings and improvements

Improvements

Accumulated depreciation improvements

Equipment and vehicles

Accumulated depreciation - equipment
and vehicles

Construction in progress

Total capital assets, net of
anccumulated depreciation

Total noncurrent assets

TOTAL ASSETS

CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Governmental
Water and Activities Internal
Sewer Airport Total Service Funds
$ 8,528,047 $ 4,114,225 $ 12,642,272 $ 6,047,896
23,442,437 12,897,818 36,340,255 28,511,603
3,716,402 82,978 3,799,380 1,248,424
150,298 137,305 287,603 237,124
2,581,211 170,422 2,751,633 -
- - - 194,675
- 420,148 420,148 -
- - - 285,275
21,535 - 21,535 314,542
38,439,930 17,822,896 56,262,826 36,839,539
4,655,463 - 4,655,463 -
1,254,474 2,749,341 4,003,815 -
36,706,908 - 36,706,908 -
(1,903,803) - (1,903,803) -
50,336,389 - 50,336,389 -
(15,995,450) - (15,995,450) -
379,991,136 - 379,991,136 -
(113,326,071) - (113,326,071) -
- 93,596,187 93,596,187 -
- (55,762,286) (55,762,286) -
- - - 3,397,522
- - - (1,614,982)
3,670,463 5,478,901 9,149,364 48,328,791
(2,924,562) (3,769,142) (6,693,704) (28,015,233)
21,367,938 4,595,437 25,963,375 946,400
359,177,422 46,888,438 406,065,860 23.042.498
363,832,885 46,888,438 410,721,323 23,042,498
$ 402.272.815 $ 64711334 $ 466.984.149 $ 59,882,037

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS, CONTINUED

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Vouchers payable
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Deposits
Consumer security deposits
Share of Water Authority debt - current
Due to other funds - unrestricted
Estimated liability for incurred losses
Postemployment benefits
Revenue bonds current maturity

Total current liabilities

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Revenue bonds, net of current portion
Water authority debt net of current portion
Provision for compensated absences
Estimated liabilities for incurred loss, net
Postemployment benefits, net

Total noncurrent liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt
Restricted for debt service
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

Amounts due governmental activities for

allocable share of net expenses of certain

internal service funds

TOTAL NET ASSETS OF BUSINESS-
TYPE ACTIVITIES IN STATEMENT
OF NET ASSETS

CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Governmental
Water and Activities Internal
Sewer Airport Total Service Funds
$ 1,291,941 $ 231,916 1,523,857 $ 1,582,317
659,793 25,368 685,161 536,934
1,079,137 101,987 1,181,124 233,589
37,671 80,407 118,078 -
2,814,605 - 2,814,605 -
2,980,862 - 2,980,862 -
- - - 144,630
- - - 6,593,790
- - - 3,331,708
1,290,000 - 1,290,000 -
10,154,009 439,678 10,593,687 12,422,968
35,820,349 - 35,820,349 -
65,799,502 - 65,799,502 -
1,351,662 142,506 1,494,168 643,610
- - - 8,667,692
- - - 11,350,872
102,971,513 142,506 103,114,019 20,662,174
$ 113,125,522 3 582,184 - 113.707.706 $ 33.085.142
$ 253,286,709 $ 46,888,438 300,175,147 $ 23,042,498
3,365,463 - 3,365,463 -
32,495,121 17,240,712 49,735,833 3,754,397
$ 289.147.293 $ 64,129,150 353,276,443 $ 26.796.895
(7,013,800)
346,262,643

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Governmental
Water and Activities Internal
Sewer Airport Total Service Funds
OPERATING REVENUES .
Airfield fees and commissions $ - 3 580,242  § 580,242 § -
Charges for services - - - 1,018,634
Employees' benefit plan contributions - - - 4,263,634
Internal charges - - - 29,947,866
Miscellaneous revenues - - - 396
Other building and ground rentals - 1,048,537 1,048,537 -
Rents and miscellaneous 546,657 - 546,657 -
Tap fees and frontage charges 324,869 - 324,869 -
Terminal building area rental - 4,425,504 4,425,504 -
Utility sales and service 47,620,874 - 47,620,874 -
Total operating revenues 48,492,400 6,054,283 54,546,683 35,230,530
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and fringe benefits 10,509,419 1,984,829 12,494,248 4,327,863
Supplies 1,252,065 169,631 1,421,696 1,696,422
Fuel and oil - - - 3,554,416
Fuel and power 6,555,099 600,841 7,155,940 -
Contractual services 4,577,276 539,081 5,116,357 1,480,116
Water Authority charges 4,314,844 - 4,314,844 -
Other charges 6,591,912 1,897,573 8,489,485 2,428,959
Claim and loss adjustments - - - 17,435,774
Postemployment expense - - - 16,761,974
Depreciation 9,348,296 3,320,934 12,669,230 5,176,030
Total operating expenses 43,148 911 8,512,889 51,661,800 52,861,554
Operating income (loss) 5,343,489 (2,458,606) 2,884,883 (17,631,024)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Gain (loss) in disposal of property 30,888 - 30,888 294,710
Grants-in-aid - - - -
Interfund reimbursement 449,141 - 449,141 -
Interest earnings 1,590,376 654,587 2,244,963 1,416,021
Change in value of investments - (3,805) (3,805) (87,375)
Other miscellaneous revenues - 13,063 13,063 -
Interest expense and fiscal charges (4,303,033) - (4,303,033) -
Total nonoperating revenues .
(expenses) (2,232,628) 663,845 (1,568,783) 1,623,356
Income (loss) before contributions
and transfers 3,110,861 (1,794,761) 1,316,100 (16,007,668)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF AMARILLO, TEXAS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS, CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Governmental
Water and Activities Internal
Sewer Airport Total Service Funds
NONOPERATING REVENUES
(EXPENSES), CONTINUED
Capital contributions $ 1,106,357 $ 1,377,146  § 2,483,503 $ -
Transfers from other funds - - - 1,289,660
Transfers to other funds (89,376) - (89,376) (66,666)
Change in net assets 4,127,842 (417,615) 3,710,227 (14,784,674)
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 285,019,451 64,546,765 349,566,216 41,581,569
NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $ 289.147,293 $ 64129150 353,276,443 $ 26,796,895
Allocation of net expenses of certain
internal service funds to business-type
activities (7,013.800)

NET ASSETS OF BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES IN STATEMENT OF
NET ASSETS

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Net Assets of Proprietary Funds to the Statement of Activities

Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Proprietary Funds
Internal service fund allocation for proprietary funds

Change in net assets for Primary government business-type activities

$ 346,262,643

$ 3,710,227

(4,40